Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
DATE & TIME Wednesday, April 16, 2025 - 6:30 PM
LOCATION

Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda - Ruth Rambeau Memorial
Community Room

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Public access to this meeting is available as follows:

To Attend In-Person -
Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda - Ruth Rambeau Memorial
Community Room

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/826175831237?pwd=BM3TenEVxEayocip8VONHIZ9QiOnYb.1

Meeting ID: 826 1758 3123
Passcode: 406791

Persons wishing to address the Board of Commissioners are asked to submit
comments for the public speaking portion of the Agenda as follows:

e Send an email with your comment(s) to jpolar@alamedahsg.org and
vcooper@alamedahsg.org prior to or during the Board of Commissioners
meeting

e Call and leave a message at (510) 871-7435.

When addressing the Board, on agenda items or business introduced by
Commissioners, members of the public may speak for a maximum of three minutes per
agenda item when the subject is before the Board.

Persons in need of special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 747-
4325 (voice), TTY/TRS: 711, or jpolar@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to
the meeting will enable the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of
Commissioners to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility or language
assistance.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

& &

Page 1 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners April 16, 2025

1. ROLL CALL

2. AB2449 COMPLIANCE "AB2449 Compliance: The Chair will confirm that there
are 4 members in the same, properly noticed meeting room within the
jurisdiction of the City of Alameda. Each board member who is accessing the
meeting remotely must disclose verbally whether they are able to be remote
under AB2449: (1) just cause (max. 2 per year), or (2) emergency
circumstances.” For Emergency Circumstances, the request must be approved
by a majority vote of the Board of Commissioners for the emergency
circumstances to be used as a justification to participate remotely. Remote
Commissioners must provide a general description of the circumstances relating
to need to appear remotely at the given meeting. Commissioner must also
publicly disclose at the meeting, prior to any action, whether any other
individuals 18 years or older are present in the room with the member at the
remote location, and the general nature of the member’s relationship with such
individuals. Note: A Commissioner cannot participate in meetings of the Board of
Commissioners solely by teleconference from a remote location for a period of
more than 3 consecutive months or 20% of the regular meetings for AHA within
a calendar year, or more than 2 meetings if the Board of Commissioners
regularly meets fewer than 10 times per calendar year.

3. COMMISSIONER RECUSALS
4. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)
5. Closed Session - 6:30 p.m. - Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider:

5.A. CONFFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.8.
Property Location: 1129 Regent Street, Alameda, CA 94501-5330 Units A
through C.
Assessor’s Parcel Number 070-0182-075-00
Agency Negotiators: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, Sylvia Martinez,
Director of Housing Development, Negotiating Parties: Owners: Petrochis, N,
Rojas A, and Fikre, A
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms

5.B. Conference with Real Property Negotiations
(Government Code § 54956.8)
Property: 500-520 Mosely and 2000 Lakehurst Circle, and remainder, Alameda,
CA 94501, APN 074-0905-012-09, Portion of 074-0905-010-12 and Portion 074-
0905-010-03, 074-1384-1, 174-1384-2, 074-1384-4, 074-1384-5
Agency Negotiation: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, Sylvia Martinez,
Director of Housing Development, Alison Torbitt (Nixon and Peabody - counsel)
Negotiating Parties: Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

5.C. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.8.
Property Location: 2615 Eagle, Alameda, CA 94501
Assessor's Parcel Numbers: 70-161-55-2

& &

Page 2 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners April 16, 2025

5.D.

5.E.

= © ® N O

10.A.

10.B.
10.C.
10.D.
10.E.
10.F.
10.G.
10.H.

10.1.

11.
11.A.

Agency Negotiators: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, Sylvia Martinez,
Director of Housing Development, Alicia Southern, Director of Human
Resources, Alison Torbett (Nixon Peabody — Counsel)

Negotiating Parties: Housing Authority of the City of Alameda

Under Negotiation: Potential litigation

Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation: Significant exposure to
litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government Code Section 54956.9:
One potential case. Counsel Goldfarb & Lipman LLP.

Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation: Anticipated litigation
pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government Code Section 54956.9:0ne
potential case. Counsel Liebert Cassidy Whitmore.

Adjournment of Closed Session

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING

Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.
Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

CONSENT CALENDER

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or
accepted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or
explanation is received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the
public.

Approve Minutes of the Regular Board of Commissioners Meeting held on
March 19, 2025. Page 5

Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department. Page 13
Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations. Page 16

Accept the Monthly Update on Construction in Progress (CIP). Page 21

Accept the Monthly Construction Report for The Estuary I. Page 25

Accept the Monthly Construction Report for Linnet Corner. Page 31

Accept the Monthly Report for North Housing Offsites. Page 42

Authorize the Executive Director or Designee to sign an amendment with
Goldfarb & Lipman LLP for general counsel to increase the budget by $400,000
in an amount not to exceed $850,000 and to extend the contract for two
additional years to 2028. Page 46

Authorize the Executive Director or designee to negotiate and execute the
purchase of one or both of the two townhomes located at 1129 Regent Street,
Alameda, CA 94501-5330 Units A and B. Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 70-182-75
and 70-182-74. Approve expenses of up to $150,000 from AHA for the
improvement of the property including repairs of stairs and balcony to be levied
against the respective homeowners and recoupable at sale. Page 50

AGENDA
Accept a Report for The Poplar (2615 Eagle Avenue) and Presentation from

& &

Page 3 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners April 16, 2025

11.B.
11.C.
11.D.

12.
13.
14.
15.

16.

17.
18.

TWM Architects + Planners. Page 53

Accept a presentation of the 2024 Social Services Report. Page 72

Approve a Resolution to Quitclaim an Access Easement at PanAm Way. Page 102
Approve Changes to the Administrative Plan. Page 119 (incl. as separate document)
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the
Commissioners)

CONTINUATION OF CLOSED SESSION OF HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS — IF NEEDED

Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.
ADJOURNMENT

***Note***

Documents related to this agenda are available on-line at:
https://www.alamedahsg.org/meetings/

Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to
serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. The Board of
Commissioners exists to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations
are conducted before the people and are open for the people’s review. In order
to assist the Housing Authority’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe
allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may
be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the Housing
Authority accommodate these individuals.

Page 4 of 368



Housing Authority PHONE:  (510) 747-4300
= of the = FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue ¢ Alameda, California 94501-2161

DRAFT MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 19, 2025

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chair Grob called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.

1. ROLL CALL
Present: Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, Commissioner Tamaoki, and
Commissioner Tamaoki

Absent: Commissioner Kaufman

Note: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, was also present. Louie So, Chief
Financial Officer, functioned as the meeting host.

N

AB2449 COMPLIANCE "AB2449 Compliance: The Chair will confirm that there
are 4 members in the same, properly noticed meeting room within the
jurisdiction of the City of Alameda. Each board member who is accessing the
meeting remotely must disclose verbally whether they are able to be remote
under AB2449: (1) just cause (max. 2 per year), or (2) emergency
circumstances.” For Emergency Circumstances, the request must be approved
by a majority vote of the Board of Commissioners for the emergency
circumstances to be used as a justification to participate remotely. Remote
Commissioners must provide a general description of the circumstances
relating to need to appear remotely at the given meeting. Commissioner must
also publicly disclose at the meeting, prior to any action, whether any other
individuals 18 years or older are present in the room with the member at the
remote location, and the general nature of the member’s relationship with such
individuals. Note: A Commissioner cannot participate in meetings of the Board
of Commissioners solely by teleconference from a remote location for a period
of more than 3 consecutive months or 20% of the regular meetings for AHA
within a calendar year, or more than 2 meetings if the Board of Commissioners
regularly meets fewer than 10 times per calendar year.

Chair Grob confirmed that there were more than 4 Commissioners present in
the noticed meeting room and that no Commissioners were attending virtually.

& &

Page 5 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners March 19, 2025

3. COMMISSIONER RECUSALS

None.

4, Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

None.

5. Closed Session - 6:30 p.m. - Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider:

Chair Grob adjourned to Closed Session at 6:35 p.m.

5.A. Conference with Real Property Negotiations
(Government Code § 54956.8)
Property: 500-520 Mosely and 2000 Lakehurst Circle, and remainder,
Alameda, CA 94501, APN 074-0905-012-09, Portion of 074-0905-010-12 and
Portion 074-0905-010-03, 074-1384-1, 174-1384-2, 074-1384-4, 074-1384-5
Agency Negotiation: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, Sylvia Martinez,
Director of Housing Development, Alison Torbitt (Nixon and Peabody - counsel)
Negotiating Parties: Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

5.B. Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation:
Anticipated litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code Section
54956.9: One potential case

6. Adjournment of Closed Session

Chair Grob adjourned Closed Session at 7:12 p.m.

7. RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING

Chair Grob reconvened the Regular Meeting at 7:12 p.m.

8. Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.

Chair Grob stated that during the Closed Session the Board discussed item 5.A
and will discuss item 5.B following the Regular Meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

9. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

None.

& &

Page 6 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners March 19, 2025

10. CONSENT CALENDER

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or
accepted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or
explanation is received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the
public.

*10.A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Board of Commissioners Meeting held on
February 19, 2025.

*10.B. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department.
*10.C. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations.

*10.D. Accept the Monthly Update on Construction in Progress (CIP).

*10.E. Accept the Monthly Construction Report for The Estuary I.

*10.F. Accept the Monthly Construction Report for Linnet Corner.
*10.G. Accept the Monthly Report for North Housing Offsites.

*10.H. Adopt an Updated Fee Schedule for Third Party Real Estate Transactions.
Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk.

Vice-Chair Sidelnikov moved to accept the Consent Calendar items, and
Commissioner Joseph-Brown seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Yes 6 Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, Commissioner Joseph-Brown, and
Commissioner Tamaoki

11. AGENDA

11.A. Accept the Audited Financial Statements Report for Fiscal Year Ending June
30, 2024 and Authorize the Executive Director to Approve and Finalize, with no
material changes to the financial position as presented in the Draft Audited
Financial Statements.

Louie So, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Rich Larsen, from Novogradac &
Company LLC, who provided a presentation of the summarized Draft Audited
Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024. Mr. Larsen
highlighted the three reports resulting from the audit performed: (1) Report of
Independent Auditor, which is the report that includes the auditor’s opinion on
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s (AHA) financial statements.
Novogradac issued an unmodified opinion on AHA’s financial statements, which
is the highest level of assurance that can be issued by auditors. (2) Audit in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards which is used by Novogradac
to consider AHA'’s internal control over financial reporting. Novogradac did not
identify any deficiencies in internal controls that were considered to be a
material weakness. Also considered in this report is AHA’s Financial Reporting
and Compliance. Novogradac indicated that the results of their tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under the Government Auditing Standards; and (3) Report In Accordance with

& &

Page 7 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners March 19, 2025

Uniform Guidance, which is federal law. This report reflects Novogradac’s
findings on whether AHA complied with all federal law when expending federal
program funds. Novogradac issued an unmodified opinion on AHA'’s federal
compliance. Mr. Larsen also noted that AHA's financial statements for the
period ending June 30, 2024, indicate tremendous liquidity.

The Board appreciated staff for the efforts put forth to obtain a clean/no-finding
audit.

Chair Grob moved to accept the Audited Financial Statements Report for Fiscal
Year Ending June 30, 2024, and Authorize the Executive Director to Approve
and Finalize, with no material changes to the financial position as presented in
the Draft Audited Financial Statements, and Commissioner Tamaoki seconded.
The motion passed unanimously.

Yes 6 Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, Commissioner Joseph-Brown, and
Commissioner Tamaoki

.11.B. Accept a Presentation from the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda's
(AHA) Social Services Provider, LifeSTEPS.

Joshua Altieri, Community Relations Manager, introduced LifeSTEPS staff,
Candace Williams, Regional Director, and Jean Burns, Regional Supervisor,
who were in attendance of the meeting, and acknowledged Angel Reyes,
DSSS, Trevor Jackman, CM, Raquel Ellis, DSS, and Aliyah Morgan, DSS.

Ms. Williams and Ms. Burns provided a presentation that included an overview
of LifeSTEPS’ mission, impact, and the services, provided to AHA residents by
LifeSTEPS; noting that AHA’s support is vital to their work and the partnership
between LifeSTEPS and AHA is key to improving the City of Alameda.

The Board appreciated LifeSTEPS for their partnership and work to bring vital
services to AHA residents.

11.C. Accept the Annual Hiring Report as required by AB 2561; approve a revised
Schedule of Authorized Positions effective immediately; approve a Pay
Schedule effective March 20, 2025; and approve proposals for flexibility in
hiring, including extending approvals made in April 2024 for a further year and
hiring all new hires and promotions from April 1, 2025 as at-will.

Alicia Southern, Director of Human Resources, provided a presentation that
summarized the requirements and impacts of AB 2561, and summarized the
request for approval of the revised Schedule of Authorized Positions and
revised Pay Scheduled.

& &

Page 8 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners March 19, 2025

Commissioner Tamaoki moved to accept the Annual Hiring Report as required
by AB 2561; approve a revised Schedule of Authorized Positions effective
immediately; approve a Pay Schedule effective March 20, 2025; and approve
proposals for flexibility in hiring, including extending approvals made in April
2024 for a further year and hiring all new hires and promotions from April 1,
2025 as at-will, and Commissioner Joseph-Brown seconded. A roll call vote
was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.

Yes 6 Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, Commissioner Joseph-Brown, and
Commissioner Tamaoki

Chair Grob adjourned the meeting at approximately 7:53 p.m., noting that the
meeting will be reconvened after the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation
Meeting.

Chair Grob reconvened the Regular Meeting at 8:11 p.m.

11.D. Adopt the Agency’s 5-Year Plan, Annual Plan, and Moving to Work (MTW)
Supplement for Fiscal Year Starting July 1, 2025 and Authorize the Chair to
Certify, By Resolution, that the Board of Commissioners has Approved
Submission of the 5-Year Plan, Annual Plan, and MTW Supplement to HUD.

Sepideh Kiumarsi, Senior Management Analyst, provided a presentation on the
Five-Year Plan, Annual Plan, and Moving to Work Supplement (MTW) starting
July 1, 2025. This presentation included updates made to the timeline of
events, since last presented, which resulted from the extensions allowed by
HUD for the MTW program.

Commissioner Joseph-Brown moved to adopt the Agency’s 5-Year Plan,
Annual Plan, and Moving to Work (MTW) Supplement for Fiscal Year Starting
July 1, 2025 and Authorize the Chair to Certify, By Resolution, that the Board of
Commissioners has Approved Submission of the 5-Year Plan, Annual Plan, and
MTW Supplement to HUD, and Commissioner Tamaoki seconded. A roll call
vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

Yes 6 Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, Commissioner Joseph-Brown, and
Commissioner Tamaoki

11.E. Authorize the Executive Director to Negotiate and Execute a Change Order with
J.H. Fitzmaurice Not to Exceed $3,000,000 for North Housing Soil Offhaul
Costs.

Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development, provided a presentation that
summarized the Soil Offhaul Approvals, noting that the presentation also

& &

Page 9 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners March 19, 2025

applies to item 11.F. Both items 11.E and 11.F are related to the work being
performed at the North Housing site.

Vice-Chair Sidelnikov moved to authorize the Executive Director to Negotiate
and Execute a Change Order with J.H. Fitzmaurice Not to Exceed $3,000,000
for North Housing Soil Offhaul Costs, and Commissioner Joseph-Brown
seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Yes 6 Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, Commissioner Joseph-Brown, and
Commissioner Tamaoki

11.F. Approve Amendment No. 1 to a Consultant Services Agreement Not to Exceed
$2,769,519.07 between the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda and
Lakehurst and Mosley LP and Amendment No. 1 to a Consultant Services
Agreement Not to Exceed $6,639,696.14 between the Housing Authority of the
City of Alameda and Mabuhay and Lakehurst LP, and Approve a Consultant
Services Agreement Not to Exceed $2,141,922.79 between the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda and Mosely and Mabuhay LP for North
Housing Block A Master Development Work.

Commissioner Joseph-Brown moved to approve Amendment No. 1 to a
Consultant Services Agreement Not to Exceed $2,769,519.07 between the
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda and Lakehurst and Mosley LP and
Amendment No. 1 to a Consultant Services Agreement Not to Exceed
$6,639,696.14 between the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda and
Mabuhay and Lakehurst LP, and Approve a Consultant Services Agreement
Not to Exceed $2,141,922.79 between the Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda and Mosely and Mabuhay LP for North Housing Block A Master
Development Work, and Commissioner Decoy seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

Yes 6 Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, Commissioner Joseph-Brown, and
Commissioner Tamaoki

11.G. Provide Direction to Staff on the Mission, Vision and Values statement.

Ms. Cooper stated that staff proposed a number of changes to the AHA
Mission Statement, primarily made to streamline the Mission Statement, with
the recommendation that staff bring the Mission Statement back to the Board
for review in 2026.

Chair Grob stated that she agreed with the recommendation made by the
Executive Director and reiterated AHA’'s commitment to fair housing for
tenants and landlords and fair employment for staff and acknowledged that
AHA is extremely effective and successful because of the staff’s ability to

& &

Page 10 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners March 19, 2025

respect each other and respect the differences that each person brings to the
organization. Chair Grob stated that she fully anticipates that staff will
continue to build on this strength.

Chair Grob moved to approve the changes proposed by staff for item 11.G,
and Commissioner Joseph-Brown seconded. The motion passed five to one,
with one opposition.

Yes 5 Chair Grob, Vice-Chair Sidelnikov, Commissioner Decoy,
Commissioner Husby, and Commissioner Tamaoki

Opposed 1 Commissioner Joseph-Brown

12.  CONTINUATION OF CLOSED SESSION OF HOUSING AUTHORITY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - |[F NEEDED

Chair Grob Adjourned to Closed Session at 8:22 p.m.
13.  Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any.

Chair Grob adjourned Closed Session and reconvened the Regular Meeting of
the Board of Commissioners at 8:51 p.m. Chair Grob stated that during
Closed Session the Board discussed item 5.B and will now hear item 11.G.

14. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

None.

15. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

None.

16. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

Mr. So stated that the Housing Wait List for Linnet Corner will open on April 4t
and remain open through April 18". This is an opportunity for anyone that is 62
years or older, to live in a studio apartment in a great location within the City of
Alameda. Available via this wait list and the eventual lottery are 23 studio
apartments, which feature individual bathrooms and kitchens, and are suitable
for one to two person households. The lottery will be conducted no later than
April 25" and applicants can expect to hear back by May 30" or sooner. Move-
ins are projected to begin later this year in September 2025.

Mr. So stated that staff from the College of Alameda will be tabling at Rosefield
Village on April 16" and Esperanza Apartments on April 23. They will share
information about upcoming enroliments for both Summer and Fall semesters

& &

Page 11 of 368



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners March 19, 2025

and highlight higher educational opportunities, as well as vocational training
programs.

Mr. So went on to state that The City of Alameda’s Zero Waste Program will be
visiting Rosefield Village on March 20", Parrot Gardens and Parrot Village on
March 25%, and China Clipper on April 15", Once all the visits are completed,
the team will have visited 7 AHA properties to distribute compost bins, recycle
totes, and information materials. Mr. So also stated that Mastick Senior Center
staff tabled at Independence Plaza on February 25™, in which 32 residents were
informed about all Mastick senior programming. Mastick staff will be at Anne B.
Diament Plaza on March 20"

Mr. So reminded the Board that their Form 700 and Ethics training are due on
April 15, Mr. So reminded the Board that their Form 700 must include both the
Board of Commissioners and Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation and that
they must complete no less than 2 hours of Ethics Training.

17. COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the
Commissioners)

None.

18. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Grob adjourned the meeting at 8:56 p.m.

Vanessa M. Cooper Carly Grob, Chair
Secretary and Executive Director Board of Commissioners

& &

Page 12 of 368



Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Director of Data and Policy

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs
Department.

BACKGROUND

This memo is a high-level overview of Housing Programs Department (HPD) activities
for the prior month.

DISCUSSION

Wait list

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) staff are still working to get the wait
list updated and ready to pull names. One additional software program is needed from
AHA's vendor and then the AHA will be ready to do a random lottery for the wait lists.

Leasing
AHA worked with the Oakland Housing Authority and the Housing Authority of the

County of Alameda to re-allocate 36 vouchers under the Veteran Affairs Supportive
Housing (VASH) program. The Veteran Affairs (VA) and AHA have worked hand-in-
hand and all vouchers are either issued or leased already. The success rate of referred
veterans was high. So far, only two veterans were unable to secure housing under the
VASH program, and one of those worked with the VA to secure housing elsewhere.

The lease-up of 40 vouchers at The Estuary | and an additional 40 vouchers at Linnet
Corner has started with the receipt of 19 referrals from the Coordinated Entry System
(CES).

FISCAL IMPACT
For report only, no fiscal impact.

CEQA
N/A

& &

Page 13 of 368



RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Monthly Overview of the Housing Programs Department.

ATTACHMENTS
1.  February 2025 Housing Programs Dept Dashboard

Respectfully submitted,

Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Director of Data and Policy

Page 14 of 368



89¢ Jo G| abed

u1 dn pasea| asoy} 03 aduenss|
13Y2NnoA wouy uoneing aselany

2T SS0J0y a8eJany - GZ0¢
Arenuaqa4 104) Aluoyiny 198png

C 0S'7801 S (S
6¢ 8€°/ST'E S v
[4:38 ¥1'8SL°C S |€
T€S 8/°9TT'C S [t
68 6CS6LT S|T
VA7 ¥59°€89 S |0
SP|OYasnoH jo Juno) dVH 28eJany 9|5 wooJpayg 66¢€ paseaq 10N SI2Yd2NoA IV
9zIS woo.ipag J1ad dyH jo 28esany 6502 DIV uo sHun
0991 pasea SI9YdnoA [er0]
SAH3 mau Buinss] uo (o) C (AS) s4ayonop Anjigels
uoniqiyoud s,gnH pue weiSoad ays jo 19suns
9Y31 01 3NP W1} JIDAO ISBIIIDP ||IM SIBYINOA,,
6/ LS papsemy jezog| oz 09 (HSVA) 8uisnoH
aAIoddng sijeyy suetalap
(s202/20) paiv|dwo) suondadsul|  |zs paseal |eor| |os v (dnd)
%1 91 SINO HOod AH3 9|qedl|ddy JoN|€€T AJDH PAUMO-VHY
(szoz/z0) swiLasadl  Jog epawe|y 3|qedl|ddy 1oN|€z€ (Agd)
passed suondadsuj jo aSejuadriad ut (094£) AH3 SJ9YdnoA paseg 199[0.d
¥8'TLT'ST S #S49YdnoA BuisnoH Aduagiaw3 a|qed|jddy 30N|000T (AJH)
sJayanop 3210y SuisnoH
awodul HH d8esany papJemy junowy| Ppasea] s49YdnoA weaS0.4d 19YydonoA
S9°'0T9 S %9°90T adA L Ag paseaq siayanop DIV |er0l
d11 38esany Auoyiny 198png/dvH
L' ShS S 6T CEV'EBB'E S (013 6¢ oYS
uollell|igeyay S1eJapON
JaumQ 03 JUay Jueud] aSelany papuadxa dvH |eiol ST 8T 2Je) sn|d J431/9ys
0'€9t LT'958°C9’E S papuni/papiemy| pasea]staydnop weJso.d
junowy
(sAep) szoe Atenigag (syauow adA] Ag pasea s49ydonoA DIV-NON |erol

6z0¢Z Aenaqa4 10j paeoqyseq Juawiiedaqg sweidoad SuisnoHq




Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Nancy Gerardin, Director of Property Operations

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations.
BACKGROUND

This memo provides a high-level overview of the Property Operations Department’s
activities for the previous month.

DISCUSSION

The attached table (Attachment 1) summarizes property performance for all sites,
including Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) and affiliate-owned sites, and
all properties FPI Management (FPI) manages, for the month of March. AHA continues
to work closely with FPI to improve overall property operations.

VACANCY

The attached table (Attachment 1) reflects the end-of-month occupancy and leased rate
per site. Staff are working with FPI to improve the timeliness of the leasing efforts and
review vacancy loss weekly with FPI to reduce vacancies and improve the unit turn
process. The average days to make ready for the month of March was 16 (this reflects
an increase over the prior month due to a unit that became available as a result of a
legal matter which delayed work commencing).

In Q3 of 2024, AHA implemented a pre-screening process to assist with the leasing
efforts of PBV units at Anne B. Diament, Parrot Village, and Littlejohn Commons. The
intent is to minimize the amount of downtime during the outreach and review of the
initial resident selection criteria with staff performing the outreach, initial review of
occupancy and income qualifications, and mailing of disposition letters to families and
the Housing Programs Department. Once applications have been identified as pre-
qualified, the files will be sent to FPI for final criteria review to include background and
landlord reference confirmation. Thus far, this process has proven to be beneficial, and
AHA included the pre-screening process for Independence Plaza and Parrot Village 4-
bedroom units effective in September 2024 and all remaining PBV units within the
portfolio were added to this process effective November 2024. This practice will be used

& &

Page 16 of 368



for the lease-up efforts for Estuary | and Linnet Corner. As part of the resident
screening, FPIl is also requesting a copy of their rent ledger from new applicants to
ensure that they pass the landlord reference portion. This is not required from those
who are homeless or living with family.

Vacancies that do not have a waitlist are posted on the AHA website and applications
are available through the Resident Managers, as well as affordablehousing.com,
GoSection 8 (the Section 8 online search engine), and on Craigslist.

RENT COLLECTIONS

The attached table (Attachment 1) provides the rent collection rate versus budget for all
AHA-owned and affiliate-owned sites managed by FPI. Overall portfolio rent collection
rate for month of March was 88.9%.

Properties with collection rates in excess of 95% are due to higher market rents
achieved vs. budget coupled with increased subsidy payments. The lower collection
rates for March are primarily due to the units pending legal action, past due balances for
residents (some properties are still affected by non-payment of rent during the COVID-
19 pandemic), the pending reconciliation of both HAP and resident payments due to the
conversion at Independence Plaza to the RAD program, and lower subsidy collected
due to abatement of payments due to failed HQS inspections. Failed inspections and
potential abatement is reviewed and audited weekly with subsidy payments that are
withheld over 30 days the responsibility of FPI and applied as a credit to the
management fee in future months. Such credits can be expected to be reflected in Q1
of 2025 for Eagle Village, Esperanza, China Clipper, and AAHC scattered sites.

Like many owners, especially non-profit owners, there remains a fairly large payment
issue stemming from the COVID era. The total delinquency (unpaid rent) for the
portfolio for current residents is $468,913. Of this, the total delinquency for residents in
legal (i.e. subject to a 30-day notice of termination) is $302,275.

All residents with a past due balance are referred to LifeSTEPS for assistance. Property
Management and LifeSTEPS continue to engage residents and encourage them to
enter into a repayment agreement. Residents who owe over $100 are issued a 30-day
notice to pay or quit and are referred to legal counsel for review of their cases and,
where necessary, the 30-day notice to pay or quit has been filed with the court.
LifeSTEPS, FPI, and the Ombudsman are working with these families to enter into a
"stay and pay" stipulated agreement, although a very small number have not complied
and will be evicted if they do not leave before the lock out.

Residents who only owe back rent from prior to December 2022 cannot be issued a 30-
day notice, so some fairly significant balances will remain on the ledger until the
resident moves out. A small number of other legal cases are ongoing for nuisance
behavior.

Page 17 of 368



Rent collections, pending legal/eviction matters, and overall account receivable
collection efforts are reviewed in detail weekly by AHA with FPI.

RENT INCREASES

Rent increases have been and will continue to be issued at all sites in the coming
months, in accordance with the new payment standards implemented in November
2024. This will result in increases to the total contract rent going up, but these rent
increases are raised to the level of the new Payment Standards and generally will not
impact subsidized residents’ rent portion, as long as they are not over-housed. Rent
increase notices are served at least 60 days in advance of the effective date to provide
ample notice to residents.

SOCIAL SERVICES

LifeSTEPS has been providing aid to tenants and households and continues to link
them to financial and social service agencies, as needed. LifeSTEPS is also actively
engaged in resident functions, including participation in the Town Hall meetings that
were conducted in October 2024, along with the FPl and AHA management teams. In
the month of November 2024, FPI and LifeSTEPS collaborated to engage with
residents to introduce and encourage online and automated payment options through
the resident portal such as WIPS (walk-in payment system) and Flex. Flex is a new
payment option that allows residents to pay rent on a bi-monthly schedule. However,
landlords receive rent payments as they are due per the lease terms. This new option
was well received by the residents based on feedback received during Town Hall
meetings.

The LifeSTEPS team and FPI continue to work with residents to participate in the online
options available and enroliment in Rent Café/the resident portal.

MAINTENANCE

Unit by unit inspections were conducted by FPI for each community in June 2024 and
annual HQS inspections were completed in December 2024. These inspections allow
management and ownership to proactively address any repairs needed, evaluate
overall property condition, and assist residents that may need social services to address
personal needs.

AHA continues to conduct bi-weekly site inspections to assess all common areas,
vacant units, and potential life safety matters.

HIRING

The department is in the process of hiring a Property Management Supervisor.

FISCAL IMPACT

Page 18 of 368



Not applicable.

CEQA
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations.

ATTACHMENTS
1. April Board Memo Attachment 1

Respectfully submitted,

Nancy Gerardin, Director of Property Operations

Page 19 of 368



89¢ Jo 0z abed

%9Y'86 %C6'96 [4 JHHVY juswelq g suuy|
%S €6 %¥S €6 1 JHVV! eze|d d3uapuadapul
%00°00T  |%00°00T 0 JHVV a8e|iIA 318e3
%C8'L6 %95 V6 S al age||IA playasoy
%00°00T  [%00°00T 0 JHVV SaYS palaneds
%0€'T6 %0€°C6 4 VHY! SIS paJaneds
%00°06 %00°06 4 adl SuoWWo) NaIAA3
%00'76 %0098 L JHVV! 98e||IA 104184
%05°L8 %05°L8 T VHY udpJeg jolied
%00°00T  |%00°00T 0 (=]} suowwo) uyofan
%E6°'S6 %0€ V6 L JHVV! ezuesads3
%9t°88 %9Y'88 € JHHY Jaddiy euiydy

s20z/1e/€0
juedep |eyol

fouednadg

Ayiad
=T aweyp Auadoid

§Z0Z Y4B Buipu3 yuow

sLT'7088 zeo'eeTs | sso'e$ 500'6% e %0°68 00'896'765'T$ | 00'ESS'PST'TS | 00'STv'8Ers | 00'0L£%68LTS |0t 989 | ol
0s$ SYT'ES T$ SOT $ L8E'7 S 8E9'LS %'66 vIT'BET § 0EC'YOT $ VEG'EES 00'986'8ETS T Jojuas |59 1d4 JHHY jJusweiq g auuy
06T'€T $ 0Lv'6$ SvS $- 90L $- SYE'ES S6V'TT S %6'6L SST'89€ $ 9E€'697 $ 618'86% 00°€18°097$ 4 Jouas |98t 1dd JHVY eze|q 2ouapuadapu
SE6'8Y S 65L'E $- 0$ (13 sts$ LIL'E $ %b'T6 0L1'L8$ 0027 $ 06'TT$ 00'T8E'¥6$ 1 o€ Idd JHVY a3e||1A 2j8e3
808'79T $ 8.6 $ 00T $ 07T $ 85C'C$ 977t S %LTL €8Y'SET S 206'6L $ 185'65$ 00'086'88T$ 1 6 1d4 aoli a3e||IA p|ayasoy
0$ S06'€v S 8€S 59T £09$ STULrS %6 70T 1SE'29$ o18'8€ S TrS'8C$ 00'222'v9S 0 Lz 14 JHVY S3)S pa1aYieds
0¢$ TE9T$ 6€$ ore $ ST $ 975'e $ %b'T6 STH'6Y $ 6LL'TV S 9€9'4$ 00'28'€5$ 0 st 1d4 VHY| Sa)s paiayieds
0¢ S60'T $ ve$ sz$ YTr'T S 896 $ %0'€8 20v'6Y $ UT'EES 9£2'9T$ 00'625'65$ 1 oz 1dd al SUOLILLIOD 132J3A3
68€'6T $ 90L'9T $ €9€'€ $ £8Y'E S 100’y $ £56'47$ %158 20L'SST S 68L'0TT $ £16'71$ 00'€90'€8TS 1 o0s 14 JHVY 33217 1011ed
03 03 0s 0¢ 0$ 03 %1'L6 vS9'vT $ 06€°2T $ v92'TT$ 00't8€'sZ$ 1 8 1dd VHY| uapueg Joued
0s 3 45 [45 78$ TITS %6'96 o0v0'zL $ 878'45 $ [41445 00°SVEVLS T Joluas  |Tg 1dd adl suowwo) uyofdpar
985'VE $ 190'8% $ €95 /8L'TS L60'T$ 80575 $ %€ 00T £STV6E S £67'667 $ 096'76$ 00'656'76€$ 1 Anwey ozt 1d4 JHWY ezuesads3
19857 S L9TE$ 0S $ 18€T$ 08T $ 6LLYS %b°S6 L9T'1S $ 818'7€ $ 6VE'8TS 00'929'€S$ 0 Awey JHHY Jaddi|) eulydy

pu3 yauow
Y21 - ¥Y
snjels uondIng

v
dyvAea+06 ¥vAea06-19 Aea09-1E

HY Aed 0£-0

pu3
Yauow yd1ew (1emoy)
- sagiey) piedun pa323)|0d pa329||10)
|e30] Juaun) % juay [ejo)

pa3a||00
Apisqns

Pa129]|0)
U3y JuBpIsaY

(pa138png) Juay
|elualod sson

syun Aq Aq
128euep |eloL paseuepy paumQ awep Apadoig
St-1eN

I INJWHOVLLY



Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Joseph Nagel, Senior Construction Project Manager

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept the Monthly Update on Construction in Progress (CIP).
BACKGROUND

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) and its affiliate, the Alameda
Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC), own and operate multifamily property
throughout Alameda. Periodically, work is scheduled to maintain and upgrade existing
buildings, or to improve property that is anticipated to be redeveloped in the future. In
2022, AHA and AAHC obtained Physical Needs Assessments (PNA) on all properties
over 5 years old. These assessments delineated capital needs over a 15-year period,
but also highlighted any health and safety needs and items for short-term attention.
AHA and AAHC have completed or begun all health and safety items, and plan to
address short-term needs through the annual budgeting process for every property.
Staff prioritizes work that is health and safety-related, lender-required, or provides risk
mitigation. Priority tasks are divided between onsite FPI staff and contracting, and
larger projects where there may be additional plan and permit submissions, which are
undertaken by AHA staff. AHA's Housing Development department works
collaboratively with the Portfolio and Asset departments to provide a budget and scope
of work for the 2025-26 agency budget.

DISCUSSION
The following construction projects are in progress as of this Board Meeting:

1. HazMat Remediation and Demolition of Existing Structures at The Poplar, 2615
Eagle Ave. (Formerly AUSD Maintenance)

Site: The Poplar

Total cost: $TBD

Source of funds: Poplar pre-development sources

Purpose: Remediate, demolish and dispose of the existing physical improvements at
2615 Eagle Ave. For the purposes of future development.

Status: Demolition permit is currently under review at the city planning dept. and AHA
has issued an RFP for remediation, demolition and monitoring services was issued on
2/19/2025. A mandatory bid walk for interested vendors was conducted on 3/4/2025 and

& &

Page 21 of 368



(9) potential contractors attended. Only (1) proposal for services was received in
response to this RFP. AHA will be revising the scope of services and re-issuing the RFP
on 4/3/2025.

2. China Clipper Balcony Repairs

Site: China Clipper

Estimated total cost: $110,000

Source of funds: Property Operating Budget

Purpose: Repair balconies in compliance with Senate Bill 721 recommended repairs.
Timeline: This scope of work is expected to take 9 months to complete.

Status: Barry and Wynn Architects have been chosen to design the (2) replacement
balconies and provide the permit documents at a cost of $29,876.67. A Contract is
expected to be signed by 4/9/2025.

3. Lincoln House Balcony Repairs

Site: Lincoln House

Estimated total cost: $65,000

Source of funds: Property Operating Budget

Purpose: Repair balconies in compliance with Senate Bill 721 recommended repairs.
Timeline: This scope of work is expected to take 9 months to complete.

Status: Barry and Wynn Architects have been chosen to design the (2) replacement
balconies and provide the permit documents at a cost of $14,938.33. A Contract is
expected to be signed by 4/9/2025.

4. Independence Plaza Community Room Kitchen ADA Accessibility Renovation

Site: Independence Plaza

Estimated total cost: $58,121.92

Source of funds: Property Operating Budget

Purpose: HUD required accessibility renovations.

Timeline: Work is expected to take 3—4 weeks.

Status: The permit has been received. Work is scheduled to begin on 3/31/2025. New
Generation Builders, Inc. mobilized and began renovations on 3/31/2025. The
renovations are expected to take up to 4 weeks to complete.

5. Independence Plaza Lobby and Restrooms ADA Accessibility Renovations.

Site: Independence Plaza

Estimated total cost: $TBD

Source of funds: Property Operating Budget

Purpose: HUD required accessibility renovations.

Timeline: TBD.

Status: TWM Architects have been chosen to design the (2) restrooms and lobby and
provide the permit documents at a cost of $33,000.00. A Contract is expected to be
signed by 4/9/2025.

6. Parrot Garden/ Parrot Village Office ADA Accessibility Renovation
Site: Parrot Garden/ Parrot Village

Page 22 of 368



Estimated total cost: $TBD

Source of funds: Property Operating Budget

Purpose: Code Compliant Required accessibility renovations.

Timeline: Work is expected to take 3—4 weeks.

Status: Barry and Wynn Architects have been chosen to design the (2) replacement
balconies and provide the permit documents at a cost of $44,000.00. A Contract is
expected to be signed by 4/9/2025.

7. Portfolio Seismic Assessment and Remediation Reports

Sites: AHA, AAHC Porfolio.

Total cost: $TBD

Source of funds: AHA General Fund

Purpose: Review and analyze the potential seismic vulnerability to earthquake damage
to structures within the existing portfolio and outline necessary repairs or modifications
needed to improve their structural integrity and minimize potential damage during an
earthquake.

Status: An RFQ for Engineering and Consulting Services is scheduled to be published
on 4/10/2025.

8. Independence Plaza, ADA Compliant Signage

Site: Independence Plaza, Lincoln House, Sherman House, and Stanford House
Estimated total cost: $45,820.00

Source of funds: Property Operating Budgets

Purpose: ADA Required Accessibility Renovations.

Timeline: TBD

Status: The signage is in design.

9. Parrot Garden Parking Lot Asphalt Resurfacing (by FPI Management)

Site: Parrot Garden

Estimated total cost: $39,000

Source of funds: AHA General Fund

Purpose: Resurfacing and pothole repair at the Parrot Garden/Office parking lot
Timeline: The existing parking lot surface is in poor condition and creates a trip hazard,
FPI has solicited proposals to complete this work.

The work is expected to begin in the next 90 days.

10. Everett Common Domestic Water Leaks

Site: Everett Common

Estimated total cost: TBD

Source of funds: TBD

Purpose: Investigating multiple leaks of domestic water supply lines in PEX water lines
Timeline: AHA is investigating the reoccurrence of water leaks in multiple residential
units over the last 2+ years. These are typically in PEX supply lines. AHA staff are
working with the developer, JHF and the property management team, FPI to determine
possible causes of these leaks. Samples of the PEX material have been removed from
the existing buildings and will be sent to a material testing lab for analysis.

Page 23 of 368



FISCAL IMPACT

Funding for repairs and maintenance on existing properties owned by either AHA or the
AAHC is from either property reserves or the 2024 Reserve Policy Preservation Budget,
as adopted by the AHA Board of Commissioners. Funding for the Poplar is being
supported by redevelopment funds through the Alameda Unified School District and the
City of Alameda.

CEQA
None

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Monthly Update on Construction in Progress (CIP).

ATTACHMENTS
None

Respectfully submitted,
b

Joseph Nagel, Senior Construction Project Manager

Page 24 of 368



Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Jocelyn Layte, Acting Associate Project Manager

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept the Monthly Construction Report for The Estuary I.
BACKGROUND

The Housing Development Department provides monthly reports on projects under
construction where either the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) or Island
City Development (ICD) is acting as developer and provides performance guarantees.

The Estuary | project is located at 500 Mosley Avenue. ICD is the developer. The
project scope includes 45 new construction permanent supportive housing units for
homeless or formerly homeless individuals or households, including one manager’s unit.
Amenities include property management offices, social service coordination offices, a
community room, a mail room, central laundry, central courtyard, and secure bike
parking. J.H. Fitzmaurice, Inc. (JHF) initiated construction on January 30, 2024, and is
scheduled to achieve completion on or before August 8, 2025.

Please see previous monthly Board Reports for project details prior to this month’s
update.

DISCUSSION

Construction

The overall project completion and billing percentage, through March 31, 2025, is
approximately 90%. All units have been completed and are receiving appliances at the
end of the month and will continue to have contractor punch walks. The AHA team and
the General Contractor, JH Fitzmaurice (JHF), completed the pre-punch walk in March
that identified common fixes and adjustments to finished units that would be carried out
across the remaining units. The lobby started its tiling installation prep. Office spaces
have complete finishes and doors with hardware installed. Pavers have been placed in
the courtyard along with sidewalks, curbs and gutters on the south side of the building.
Bioretention work and the north-side exterior work for cement pours and landscaping
will continue throughout the month. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) cameras and the
live guard, patrolling the site after hours and on weekends, provide security at the site
as JH Fitzmaurice (JHF) continues to make good construction progress. The project

& &

Page 25 of 368



received its green tag and clear for construction status, which allows Alameda Municipal
Power to schedule and install individual meters at the site, bringing the project even
closer to full energization. Currently, there are 14 rain days which were used due to the
rain's impact on site work and offsite items. This means an additional 14 days were
taken from the overall schedule on top of the original contract budgeted rain delay days.
The interiors are on or ahead of schedule. At this time, the GC still anticipates early
completion despite the rain delays, so long as electrical and elevator trades move
forward on time. Staff are tracking this and continue to monitor delays, weather, and
project schedule to consider if acceleration would be needed to finish on time. There is
an allowance reserved for site work acceleration if needed. Temporary certificate of
occupancy (TCO) is dependent on the completion of specific offsite scopes which staff
are tracking.

April's active construction activities include: installation of corridor flooring and tiling,
remaining doors and door hardware, electrical lighting fixtures in hallways, punch walk
fixes on interior units, appliance delivery and installation, flooring and tile in community
spaces, painting of community and office spaces, continuing excavation and installation
of bio-retention areas and drains, exterior courtyard and pathway work on the west and
north elevations, pet relief area installation, and irrigation and topsoil delivery. The AHA
team looks to have final punch walks for interiors in early May. Interior and exterior work
this month is moving forward according to schedule.

No new change orders have been approved over the past month, keeping the total
approved change orders to $427,181. An Owner's hard cost contingency and a General
Contractor's contingency (already budgeted within the GC contract) are available for
upgrades, master-plan cost overruns, as well as unexpected costs detailed below.
Owner contingency funds are held separately from the contract. Executed change
orders have utilized 23.8% of the owner's hard cost contingency and a General
Contractor's contingency combined.

The total projected use of owner contingency (including General Contractor's
Contingency and soft cost savings) is 74.5%. This includes conservative soil off haul
estimates. Only the Executive Director can approve additional costs to the contract and
staff closely review all prospective change orders at the site. All supplies needed to
finish the project have been bought out so there is not expected to be a significant
impact from the recently announced tariffs.

Operation and Lease Up Activities

Staff are working with cross-agency departments and external partners to prepare the
project for leasing and operations in 2025. Weekly all-hands meetings and task
coordination have begun and will continue throughout the projects lease up and
transition to property operations. This month, the team walked through the office spaces
to allocate rooms for leasing effort logistics.

All units will be filled from referrals — there are no units open to the general public at
Estuary | and 40 of the 44 units will also receive Project-based vouchers (PBV). FPI

Page 26 of 368



Management staff are on board working on lease-up reviews as of 4/1/2025. As of
March 31st, AHA has received eight referrals from the Alameda County Coordinated
Entry System (CES) and has scheduled six interviews for the first week of April. Focus
continues to be on finalizing the Memorandum of Understanding with the County of
Alameda for referrals from the CES, finalizing lease-up and operating budgets, and
executing contracts with property management (FPI) and services (Building Futures). All
units are leased fully furnished. Furnishings for units have been ordered, and model
units will be set up for viewing during pre-leasing activities and move-ins.

FISCAL IMPACT

AHA and ICD have completion and lease up guarantees on this development. The
construction is currently trending a few weeks early and is on budget. Operations and
lease up planning activities are meeting project milestones. See attachment for the
monthly budget update.

CEQA
Not Applicable.

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Monthly Construction Report for The Estuary I.

ATTACHMENTS

1.  Att1_Estuary | Photo updates 04.16.2025
2.  Att2_ Est | Monthly Budget Report 04.16.2025

Respectfully submitted,
Ok

/ }W’ ‘X?

With support from Neil Saxby, Renew Urban, Consultant
Jocelyn Layte, Acting Associate Project Manager

Page 27 of 368



The Estuary | Progress Photos March 2025

N B '\!? 5 i () ¥ ‘I‘.“" 2

b

Aerial photo looking south showing the northern and western elevation exterior walls.

Aerial view looking down on NH Block A showing roof tops and exterior grading work.

Page 28 of 368



Corridor lighting fixtures have gone in. Unit Pre Punch walks were completed in March.

Exterior courtyard cement pours, pathways, pavers and bioretention areas were installed.

Page 29 of 368



89¢ Jo 0¢ abed

%00T paoafold Aouagunuo) Jo %
0$ as pa12alold J21y 9ouejeg Sululeway
vreL96$ Aouagdunuon Jo asn pardafoid
v9'6/LC$ Aouadunuo) Jo souejeg uiuleway
00£°£89% $1S00 INeH-H0 110S paledionuy

%0 %TE pasn Aouagunuon Jo %

000°05C$ 772°296$ Kouadunuo) jo asuejeg ululeway

18T°L2V$ 918 01 SJaplO a3uey) paroiddy

000°0SC$ GCSv6e‘TS panoiddy Aouagunuo) 1e1o]
$1500 1J0S 1509 pleH

uoneznnn Asuagunuon

%06 9191dwo) uo2INIISUOD 9,
820°085°C$ uonualal ssa) ysiul4 01 aduejed
€10ccs‘0cs aleQ 01 pied wunowy
ov1‘cCeCc$ PIBYYUAA UOIIUB1SY
091°SP/‘TC$ aleQ 031 pa1ddwo) IOAA JO anjeA
881°‘Gee‘ses anjeA 19e41U0D pasinay
18T‘L2v$ s19pJQ a8ueyn
£00°868‘VC$ anjeA 19eJ1uo09 1810

SN)e}s 19e1U0) 1B18UdH

SYT0LE°LT$ %09 9¢1'G665°GC$ 1/2'G96°CV$ 1e101

TGY'8€6°L$ %cCe 966°859°c$ LOV'/6STTS S350 HOS

680°GT1'6$ %79 T199°167°61$ 6v7,°906°8C$ S1s0Q pleH

G09‘'9T$ %66 0TS‘vPir'Cc$ GTTTOV'C$ $1s00 3UIpP1OH B pue]
aoueleg $ pasingsiq % pasingsiq $ 193png ¢

aleq 01 51509 Juawdojanaq je1ol

GZ0Z T€ yaJel Jo se - ayepdn Ayiuopw
| Alems3 ayl




Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Paris Howze, Project Manager

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept the Monthly Construction Report for Linnet Corner.
BACKGROUND

The Housing Development Department provides monthly reports on projects under
construction where either the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) or Island
City Development (ICD) is acting as developer and provides performance guarantees.

Linnet Corner is located at 2000 Lakehurst Circle, Alameda, CA 94501. The project is
the new construction of a single, four (4) story residential building, with 64 units. There
will be 40 studio units and 23 one-bedroom units targeting seniors aged 62 and over.
There will also be one two-bedroom unit dedicated as a manager’s unit. Affordability
levels will range between 30% and 40% of the Area Median Income (AMI). The project
will also have 25% or 16 units serving formerly homeless or currently homeless senior
veterans. Amenities will include a community room, onsite property management and
service provider offices, shared unassigned parking, a laundry room, a resident garden,
and a roof terrace.

Staff delivered a notice to proceed on March 6, 2024, and J.H. Fitzmaurice, Inc. (JHF),
commenced construction activities on March 14, 2024. The project is expected to
achieve completion on or before October 30, 2025.

Please see previous Board of Commissioner reports for project details before this
month’s update.

DISCUSSION

Construction:

The overall project completion and billing percentage, through March 31, 2025, is
approximately 85%. This month’s construction activities included installation of PTAC
heating/cooling appliances at all units, installation of blinds at all units, completion of
corridor painting at all units, installation of bathroom flooring at all units, as well as
installation of wire shelving at all units. Additionally, elevator installation of both carts
has been completed and the switchgear has been installed and received its green tag

& &

Page 31 of 368



approval from Alameda Municipal Power to start meter installation.

The project currently has 17 rain delays, attributable to the rain's impact on sitework and
offsite items. The interiors are on or ahead of schedule. At this time, the General
Contractor (GC) still anticipates early completions despite the rain delays so long as
electrical and elevator trades move forward on time. Staff is reserving an allowance for
sitework acceleration if needed.

Change orders over the past month totaled $0, keeping the total approved change
orders at $466,247. Owner contingency funds are held separately from the contract.
Executed change orders have utilized 27% of the available hard cost contingency. Only
the Executive Director can approve additional costs to the contract, within the planned
contingency amounts, and staff closely review all prospective change orders at the site.
Staff are also tracking soft cost savings and the use of contingencies, which can also be
applied to hard cost uses later in the project’s cycle.

Additional funding update:

The project applied to The Home Depot Foundations Grant Program with awards
anticipated to be announced in May. If awarded, funds will be used to offset project
costs by $200,000.

Deferred Developer Fee:

At the time of construction loan closing in March 2023, the project anticipated
approximately $3.7 million in permit and impact fees and an 8.50% interest rate. Since
then, the project has realized a $1.2M reduction in permit and impact fees, and is
projecting $650k in interest fee savings due to a sightly reduced interest rate
environment (the interest rate has fluctuated down to 7.42% on average). However,
staff continue to watch the recent economic changes for potential interest changes. All
supplies needed to finish the project have been bought out so there is not expected to
be a significant impact from the recently announced tarriffs. The project is also
anticipating to spend less than the available hard and soft cost contingency on typical
line items.

However, Linnet Corner is bearing a significant portion of the anticipated soil-off haul
costs, which may reduce the amount of eligible basis, and thus reduce the equity
investment from the tax credit limited partner, resulting in a considerable gap. The
majority of the gap will be filled by an additional $1.7 million in deferred fees. However,
using conservative estimates, staff calculate that the worst-case scenario may require
an additional infusion of funds as equity from AHA in 2026, at the project’s conversion.
This will help support the future payout of the developer fee and allow the closing of the
permanent financing. This is being watched closely. If necessary, Staff will return to the
Board in 2026 to request the additional funds.

There are multiple factors that could reduce the need for AHA funds. The Home Depot

grant could benefit the project and additional cost savings beyond the current
conservative estimates could be realized. A swift lease up could reduce the time to

Page 32 of 368



conversion and lower interest costs. If fully leased, the project could use income from
operations to fund the gap for part of this and reduce the need for more of ICD or AHA
funds.

At the time of closing, the project was expected to defer $1,284,044 of developer fees
which was projected to be paid off by year 12. The project must pay off the deferred fee
by year 15 or the owner must contribute the funds to the project. After year 15, the
deferred fee is no longer a preferred payment, and other funders will take a significant
part of the cash flow. For this reason, staff are working diligently to reduce any need for
ICD/AHA cash flow or extra deferred fees.

Draw Down Schedule:

Linnet Corner, like many affordable projects, relied heavily on soft loans at the
beginning of the project, and then went into a longer phase of relying on its construction
loan to pay each month’s draw costs. For the final six months of construction, however,
it has $9.5 million of equity available to use for paying draws. This structure was
planned all along and was agreed to by all parties, and is fairly common for 4% tax
credit transactions. The main benefit of using equity for monthly draws is to save on
interest. The current month’s interest rate is 6.71%, versus the original projection of
8.50%, which means that we are saving on interest now. However, keeping the
outstanding balance low by using the equity will continue to save on interest expense. A
rough estimate of the interest saved is $200,000.

It is estimated that for about seven months of draws (May through November), including
the retention draw, we will use limited partner equity. After those payments, the project
will shift back to using its construction loan resources for the final interest carry until
stabilization in fall 2026. Staff have reviewed these proposed uses of the different
sources with the lenders, and they support the proposed plan. Estuary | does not have
any early equity funds available and will continue to rely on its construction loan for
monthly draws.

Operation and Lease-Up Activities:

Starting in January 2025, staff worked across agency departments and with external
partners to prepare Linnet Corner for lease-up commencement in April 2025. The team
has initiated a weekly all-hands meeting to coordinate the deliverables required for a
smooth lease-up and transition to property management upon commencement of
operations. Linnet Corner’s lease-up will utilize a combination of three different sources
to lease its 63 units (excluding the manager’s unit):

1. CES units: 16 one bed and studio units are reserved for un-housed, disabled
senior veterans referred by Alameda County Health Services Agency’s (HCSA)
Coordinated Entry System (CES) or through other social services agencies.
These units all have Project-Based Vouchers (PBVs). Referrals from CES are
expected soon. An interest list has also been stated in case CES is unable to
provide 16 referrals.

2. PBV units: 24 one bed and studio units will be filled through AHA’s existing

Page 33 of 368



Project-Based Voucher (PBV) waitlist; lease-up will begin in May for these units,
and

3. Lottery Units: 23 studio units will be filled through a public lottery for the units not
tied to a subsidy nor CES. The application period for the 23 units leased through
a public lottery was opened on April 4, 2025, and will close on April 18, 2025.
Links to the application will be made available on Linnet Corner's new leasing
website at www.linnetcorner.com.

Outreach efforts for both the public lottery and units reserved for veterans have included
social media campaigns and lease-up presentations at city board meetings and
community organizations in Alameda, and extensive in-person outreach with various
veterans organizations such as Swords, the Veterans Affairs, etc. To conduct leasing
activities, property management staff have temporarily moved into AHA'’s offices to
intake applications and coordinate with AHA’s Housing Programs Department for a
seamless review period. Eligibility and compliance verification will be ongoing through
the start of move-ins with all eligible residents anticipated to be identified upon receipt of
temporary certificate of occupancy (TCO) at the end of September.

Staff also continues to work closely with agency departments on the finalization of first
year operating budgets, lease-up agreements, property operations contracts, and
supportive services contracts.

FISCAL IMPACT

AHA and ICD have completion and lease-up guarantees on this development. To date,
the construction is on time, and may deliver one month early, weather permitting. At this
time, any cost overruns are covered by contingency, savings, and deferred developer
fees. Linnet Corner is a 4% tax credit project which is reliant on basis-eligible costs for
part of its financing. In a conservative scenario, the project may lose tax credit equity
because of the changes during construction (including the soil offhaul cost, basis-
eligible cost savings, and interest savings due to lower interest rates). This loss will be
covered by cost savings, and also by additional deferred developer fee. The project has
a $3 million developer fee in total of which $1,295,000 was deferred at closing. The
maximum additional deferred fee is $1,705,000. Staff will continue to review and come
back to the Board if additional ICD or AHA funding is needed.

CEQA
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Monthly Construction Report for Linnet Corner.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 25 04 Linnet Corner - Budget Tracking
2. 25 04_ Linnet Corner - Progress Photos

Page 34 of 368



Respectfully submitted,

Paris Howze, Project Manager

Page 35 of 368



Linnet Corner

Monthly Update - as of March 31, 2025

Total Development Costs to Date

$ Budget $ Disbursed % Disbursed $ Balance
Land & Holding Costs $640,864 $526,338 82% $114,526
Hard Costs $36,513,061 $25,740,398 70% $10,772,663
Soft Costs $16,118,331 $4,608,745 29% $11,509,586
Total $53,272,256 $30,875,481 58% $22,396,775
General Contract Status
Total Contract Value $29,561,507
Change Orders $466,247
Revised Contract Value $30,027,754
Value of Work Completed to Date $25,409,183
Retention Withheld $2,481,087
Amount Paid to Date $22,928,096
Balance to Finish $7,099,658
% Construction Complete 85%
Contingency Utilization
Hard Cost Soft Costs
Total Contingency Approved $1,738,717 $450,000
Approved Change Orders to Date $466,247 ($50,686)
Remaining Balance of Contingency $1,272,470 $500,686
% of Contingency Used 27% 111%
Anticipated Master Plan Costs $573,433
Projected Use of Contingency $699,037
Remaining Balance of Contingency $0
% of Contingency Projected 100%

Page 36 of 368




Linnet Corner
Progress Photos
(March 31, 2025)

Figure 2: Bird’s-eye view from Lakehurst Circle

Page 37 of 368



Linnet Corner
Progress Photos
(March 31, 2025)

Figure 4: View from corner of Lakehurst Circle & Mabuhay Street

Page 38 of 368



Linnet Corner
Progress Photos
(March 31, 2025)

Figure 5: Wire shelving within unit closets

Page 39 of 368



Linnet Corner
Progress Photos
(March 31, 2025)

Figure 6: Elevator Installation

Page 40 of 368



Linnet Corner
Progress Photos
(March 31, 2025)

Figure 7: Blinds and PTAC installation in Units

Page 41 of 368



Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Jocelyn Layte, Acting Associate Project Manager

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept the Monthly Report for North Housing Offsites.
BACKGROUND

The Housing Development Department provides monthly reports on projects under
construction, and the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) is leading the
North Housing Master-Plan work to prepare the sites and provide infrastructure for
Linnet Corner and Estuary |. This report provides updates on the North Housing Block A
offsite work.

DISCUSSION

Site: North Housing Block A Offsite Improvements, 501 Mosley Ave Alameda, CA
94501 Total cost: $4,015,747

Source of funds: Budgeted within the North Housing Block A projects with Estuary |
covering 23%, Linnet Corner covering 60%, and Estuary Il covering 17% of the offsite
improvement costs.

Purpose: AHA contracted with J.H. Fitzmaurice, Inc. (JHF) for offsite improvements to
North Housing Block A, such as the realignment of Lakehurst Circle, the new water
main extension, and the new Mabuhay Street. Offsite improvement work is expected to
be on a parallel track to the two active housing development projects (Estuary | and
Linnet Corner). Therefore, the contract end date is October 2025, which aligns with the
latter of the two housing projects' expected completion date. To date, the project has
received 30 rain delay day notices (the contract only provided for 20). Despite these
notices, the GC still anticipates early completion by July 2025. In order to achieve a
Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO) on Estuary | and Linnet Corner, portions of
the offsite work must be completed on time with those projects' intended TCO dates.
Staff are tracking this and continue to monitor delays, weather, and project schedule to
consider if acceleration would be needed to finish on time. There is an allowance
reserved for site work acceleration if needed.

The contracted value for the offsite improvements is budgeted in each of the housing
developments at Block A and funding was approved by the Board of Commissioners in

& &

Page 42 of 368



December 2023. The contractor's contingency of $150,000 in the contract is 99% used
and expected to be 100% used. Staff anticipate that the contract contingency will be
fully used. The Board approved an additional $450,000 in owner's contingency, and in
March 2025, approved up to amount of $3 million in budget authority for the soil offhaul.
Use of the owner’s contingency or soil offhaul budget authority are included pro rata in
the contingency trackers of Estuary I, Linnet Corner, and Estuary Il.

The City of Alameda has approved a phasing plan so that appropriate levels of offsite
completion are delivered with Estuary I, with the remainder completed concurrent with
Linnet Corner, to allow certificates of completion for the earlier project.

Timeline: February 2024 to October 2025.

Status: As of the end of March 2025, offsite improvement work is about 87.5%
complete. Contractor billing for March 2025 is $498,589.62 and consists of earthwork,
survey and staking, erosion control, AC paving, onsite and offsite concrete paving,
landscape and irrigation, dry utilities joint trench work. The completed work on the
Lakehurst Circle realignment and final paving of street surface. All sidewalks and
gutters along Lakehurst Circle have also been completed. The parking lot for Linnet
Corner is almost complete and received final lifts of asphalt late March. Mabuhay is the
next target phase of this project along with a permanent fencing plan. Work continues to
be on track to allow for Estuary I's Temporary Certificate of Occupancy to be received
on time and not delay lease-up of the project. There is a zero total change order for the
offsite contract which does not affect current contingency amounts. The project is on
schedule. Details on the contract status and contingency used are attached to this
report.

FISCAL IMPACT

The Board of Commissioners approved the funding for the North Housing Master-Plan,
including the offsites work for this first phase in August and December 2023.

CEQA
Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Monthly Report for North Housing Offsites.

ATTACHMENTS
1.  Att1_NH Offsite Budget Update 04.16.25

Respectfully submitted,

oY

/
J ' With support from Neil Saxby, Consultant, Renew Urban
Jocelyn Layte, Acting Associate Project Manager

Page 43 of 368



Page 44 of 368



89¢ Jo Gt abed

%0 pasn Aouaguiuon JaumQ Jo %
000°0St$ Aouadunuo) JaumQ Jo aouejeg Sululeway
0$ a1eq 0] agesn Aouagunuo) JaumQ paroiddy
000°0S77$ 10B11U09 JO 3pISINQO Aouadunuo) JaumQ 1e1o]

uoneznnn Asuagunuo) ldumo

%66 pasn Aouaguniuo) 19e13U0) 4O Y%
€VST$ Aouagunuon 10eU09 Jo 9ouejeg Sululeway
LSV'8YTS a1eq 0] agesn Aouaduiiuo 10es1uo) panoiddy
000°0ST$ Aouaguniuo) 1oenuo) eio]

1s0) pleH
uoneznin Aouagunuon 1oenuon

%88 2191dwo) uo12NIISUOD 9
G12‘Cye$ ysiul4 01 aguejeq
zes‘eLTeS aleQ 01 pied wunowy
G66'TVES PIBYYI Uonualay
[TS'GTS°e$ 918 01 pa131dwWio) NI0AA JO BaNeA
LVL'STOVS anje/ 10811U07) PasIAaY
0$ s1apJQ a8ueyn
LYVL'STO VS anjeA 10eJ1uo09 1810

snjejs 1oeiluod jelauay

GZ0Z udJel jo se - ajepdn

Supjoei] 19e1U09 sjuawanosdw] aUSHO - V2019 SUISNOH YLON




Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Radha Mehta, Management Analyst

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Authorize the Executive Director or Designee to sign an

amendment with Goldfarb & Lipman LLP for general counsel to
increase the budget by $400,000 in an amount not to exceed
$850,000 and to extend the contract for two additional years to
2028.

BACKGROUND

As a public agency, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) is required to
obtain and utilize general services to address its legal needs. Under AHA's procurement
policy and procedures, and in compliance with HUD guidelines, it is preferable to enter
into a multi-year contract for ongoing legal services. AHA has been utilizing Goldfarb &
Lipman, LLP (Goldfarb) for both general counsel services.

DISCUSSION

On April 3, 2023, AHA issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for General Counsel
Services. AHA received seven proposals from legal firms, including Goldfarb & Lipman,
LLP. In Goldfarb’s proposal, the firm selected to provide the following counsel roles:
General Counsel, Bond Counsel, Eviction and Property Management Counsel, Fair
Housing Counsel, Informal Hearing Officer Counsel, Real Estate Counsel, Procurement
Counsel, Conflict of Interest Counsel, and Housing Programs Counsel. The Evaluation
Committee reviewed and ranked the proposals and the top five firms were invited to
interview in-person with an AHA interview panel. The interview panel was composed of
AHA staff and a Board member. Goldfarb was ranked first by the panelists for legal
services and was awarded a contract for a total amount of $450,000.

AHA has been working extensively with attorney Jhaila R. Brown, at Goldfarb, to
address various legal needs. Staff recommends amending the agreement with Goldfarb
to increase the budget for general counsel services. Staff recommends extending the
contract by two additional years, to October 23, 2028, and increasing the contract
amount by $400,000, to a total of $850,000. The rates for the services have not
changed. Hourly rates for the firm remain the same, as indicated in the rates from their
original proposal (presented below) which are as follows:

& &

Page 46 of 368



Position | Hourly Fee | Hourly Fee Hourly Fee
YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5
Partner $345 - $360 - $380 | $360 - $380
$360
Associate $230 - $250 - $360 | $250 - $360
$340
Senior Law $195 $220 $220
Clerk
Law Clerk $170 $195 $195
Litigation $180 $200 $200
Paralegal
Project $180 $200 $200
Coordinator

FISCAL IMPACT

The Housing Authority's budget includes funding for general counsel services for the
current fiscal year. Future budgets will incorporate sufficient funds for services rendered
during the remainder of the agreement’s initial three-year term, and an additional two-
year term, if the Board chooses to extend the term of the agreement.

CEQA
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the Executive Director or Designee to sign an amendment with Goldfarb &
Lipman LLP for general counsel to increase the budget by $400,000, for an amount not
to exceed $850,000 and to extend the contract for two additional years to 2028.

ATTACHMENTS
1.  Goldfarb Lipman Amendment 1

Respectfully submitted,

Radha Mehta, Management Analyst

Page 47 of 368



Docusign Envelope ID: 8A45C602-67BA-4A89-AD36-4217A0C5E115
Housing Authority for the City of Alameda

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Amendment of the Agreement, entered into this 16" of April, 2025, by and between
the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA, a public body corporate and politic
(hereinafter referred to as "AHA") and GOLDFARB & LIPMAN LLP, (a California limited liability
partnership) whose address is 1300 Clay Street, 11th Floor, Oakland, CA 94612, (hereinafter
referred to as "CONTRACTOR") is made with reference to the following:

RECITALS:
A. On October 24, 2023, an agreement was entered into by and between AHA and
Contractor (hereinafter "Agreement") with a term date of June 30, 2026 and not-to-

exceed amount of $450,000.

B. AHA and Contractor desire to modify the Agreement on the terms and conditions
set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between and undersigned parties as follows:
1. The not to exceed amount for the entire Agreement shall be increased by Three
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350,000) to be amended to a not to exceed
amount of Eight Hundred Thousand dollars (800,000) for services.
2. The contract period is extended until October 23, 2028

5. Except as expressly modified herein, all other terms and covenants set forth in the
Agreement shall remain the same and shall be in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this modification of the Agreement to
be executed on the day and year first above written.

GOLDFARB & LIPMAN, LLP HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
ALAMEDA

Fj{:u[:ﬁ Brown.

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

Jhaila Brown
Partner Gregory Kats
Director of Administrative Services
General Counsel Services Amendment Created by Radha Mehta 03/26/2025 Page 1 of 2

Page 48 of 368



Docusign Envelope ID: 8A45C602-67BA-4A89-AD36-4217A0C5E115
Housing Authority for the City of Alameda

Vanessa Cooper
Executive Director

General Counsel Services Amendment Created by Radha Mehta 03/26/2025 Page 2 of 2
Page 49 of 368



Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Authorize the Executive Director or designee to negotiate and

execute the purchase of one or both of the two townhomes located
at 1129 Regent Street, Alameda, CA 94501-5330 Units A and B.
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 70-182-75 and 70-182-74. Approve
expenses of up to $150,000 from AHA for the improvement of the
property including repairs of stairs and balcony to be levied against
the respective homeowners and recoupable at sale.

BACKGROUND

In 1998, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) worked with low-income
buyers to establish a plan of condominium ownership for the Regent Street property,
such that individual homeowners could purchase homes and own a fractional sub-lease
hold interest in the common area and ground lease. There are three residential
condominiums, all of which are subject to resale restrictions to sell to future low-income
buyers. A ninety-nine-year ground lease (commencing December 1,1998) was created,
with the homeowner's association required to pay a base monthly rent that increased by
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) on an annual basis.

DISCUSSION

Over the past 2 years, staff have worked closely with the homeowners to get the owners
back into compliance with the AHA’s ground lease, including establishing payment
plans for unpaid ground lease fees, paying off loans to AHA, completing minor repairs,
appraisals and inspections, as well as re-establishing a Homeowner’s Association
(HOA) and obtaining insurance. In March 2025, all three homeowners and AHA signed
an Acknowledgment and Assumption agreement drafted by our lawyers which was
recorded on title to reflect the name of the new HOA.

For these issues, the HOA is now in compliance. However, three key issues remain.
First, the owners have made no provisions for reserves in the quarter-century since the

units were first purchased, even though these are required in the CC&RS. There are no
funds for repairs, and it appears, no significant repair or maintenance has been done on

& &

Page 50 of 368



the exterior or major systems.

Second, immediate significant repairs are needed to the staircase and balcony in the
main building. Initial estimates for the repairs obtained by AHA estimated the cost to be
approximately $110,000. One owner has obtained drawings and bids but the three have
not been able to come to an agreement on how to proceed. The City has been willing to
advance funds to the owner of one of the units for their part of the stair/balcony repair.
Staff and AHA’s counsel have met with the owners several times to attempt to facilitate
this conversation.

However, there is no current solution and per the ground lease, AHA can step in and
make the repairs itself. Staff is looking to obtain authorization to move ahead with the
stairs repair and to place a lien (a Reimbursement Assessment) on the property. This
repair work would be managed by AHA'’s Senior Construction Manager and is expected
to cost approximately $150,000. As with all exterior repairs, there is a significant risk of
additional unknown and unforeseen conditions including water intrusion. As AHA is the
owner of the land, additional insurance risks exist if there are injuries on the site if the
property is not kept in good repair.

The Reimbursement Assessment or lien would mean that AHA cannot force a sale of
the property to collect on the lien. But, if the property is sold, then assuming there is
enough value, AHA and other lenders would be paid.

Finally, staff is also seeking authorization for the Executive Director or designee to
negotiate and execute the purchase of one or both of the townhomes, assuming that the
owner is willing. If a sale and purchase moves ahead then AHA would use the unit as a
rental unit and, as part of this, would obtain a seat on the HOA.

The properties were appraised last year in 2024. However, the sales amount is
restricted in the agreement to the limited appreciation value, minus an allowance for the
lack of reserves. All units are 3-bedroom units.

Unit Appraised 2024 Limited Added Approx. 2025
2024 Value | Appreciation |[Improvements/Adjusted| Sale Price
Value for lack of reserves *
Unit A $380,000 $319,517 ($93,600) $225,917
Unit B $425,000 $319,763 ($91,800) $227,963

*assumes stairs and balcony are done by owners, not AHA.

FISCAL IMPACT

The cost of the stair and balcony repairs could be recouped at a future sale date. The
purchase of the unit/s could be made from AHA reserves and the unit/s would then be
leased out at the 80% AMI rent or payment standard if occupied by a voucher holder.

Page 51 of 368



The purchase price is considerably less than AHA could purchase a 3-bedroom unit for
in the market at this time. This purchase would help preserve affordability in the City of
Alameda.

CEQA
N/A

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the Executive Director or designee to negotiate and execute the purchase of
one or both of the two townhomes located at 1129 Regent Street, Alameda, CA 94501-
5330 Units A and B. Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 70-182-75 and 70-182-74. Approve
expenses of up to $150,000 from AHA for the improvement of the property including
repairs of stairs and balcony to be levied against the respective homeowners and
recoupable at sale.

ATTACHMENTS
None

Respectfully submitted,

VM%W«

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

Page 52 of 368



Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Jenny Wong, Senior Project Manager

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept a Report for The Poplar (2615 Eagle Avenue) and

Presentation from TWM Architects + Planners.

BACKGROUND

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) purchased the property at 2615
Eagle Avenue in March 2022. AHA has a goal of serving 50 families with affordable
housing at this development, with up to 25% supportive housing apartments if required
by funding sources. The development will have a preference for Alameda Unified
School District (AUSD) staff, as well as a live/work preference for Alamedans.

In December 2023, the Board agreed to enter into a $3.4 million pre-development loan
from Capital Impact Partners Bay’s Future Fund (BFF) to fund the acquisition and pre-
development of this site for up to four years. In February 2024, the Board approved a
$2.1 million pre-development loan from the Reserve Policy to supplement the BFF loan
amount. In March 2024, the Board approved an option to ground lease with a 20-year
term to Island City Development (ICD).

AHA has received redevelopment funding from the City of Alameda totaling $4,888,053.
The project is able to spend an additional $2,000,000 on work to further the project by
June 2025. In March 2024, the project was awarded $534,565 in Equitable Community
Revitalization Grant (ECRG) funds from the Department of Toxic Substances Control
Office of Brownfields. The grant has a two-year term (March 2024 to March 2026).
Grant funds are disbursed on a reimbursement basis and can only be used for
environmental site investigation activities.

Please see previous Board Reports for project details prior to this month’s update.

DISCUSSION

Funding
Staff is working with Capital Impact to modify the due dates for financial audits in the

BFF Loan to align with HUD required deadlines. Additionally, the definitions in the loan

& &

Page 53 of 368



documents for permitted indebtedness and transactions with affiliates inadvertently treat
AHA as a single purpose entity controlling a sole property and requires Capital Impact
consent for acquiring new debt and for doing transactions with its affiliates, AAHC and
ICD. The definitions will be modified to give AHA flexibility to conduct its usual business
without having to request Capital Impact consent unless it is related to The Poplar
project. The loan modification will be negotiated and executed by the Executive Director
and brought back to the Board in May 2025 for ratification.

Procurement

TWM Architects + Planners (TWM, Website: https://www.twmarchitects.com/) was
selected as the qualified and highest-ranking architect for The Poplar project through
the November 2022 RFQ process. TWM is an architectural firm based in the Bay Area
with project experience in the City of Alameda, affordable multifamily housing, and
historically significant buildings. They are attending this meeting to introduce their firm
and relevant qualifications to the Board of Commissioners. The total contract amount is
$136,230. Refer to Attachment 2 for their presentation.

Rockridge Geotechnical Inc. (Website: https://www.rockridgegeo.com/) was selected as
the highest-ranking consultant to provide geotechnical consulting services. The
geotechnical engineer evaluates soil and groundwater conditions and provides design
recommendations and quality control measures to ensure the building foundation can
safely support the future structure. The total contract amount is $44,300.

AHA has active solicitations for an Abatement and Demolition Contractor and a SB35
Entitlement Consultant. Proposals are due April 11, 2025 and April 7, 2025,
respectively. Solicitations for a Pre-development Contractor and a Dry Utility Consultant
are anticipated to be published in April 2025.

Design and Entitlements

TWM has begun work on the conceptual design plans. The development programming
includes site amenities and resident services programming that aim to support the
future tenant’s day-to-day life. A detailed program will be available in Summer 2025.

The development will not require CEQA review and is zoned for the planned use. The
site will have to submit drawings for a ministerial design review process on objective
design standards, and for offsite public works approvals. As an affordable housing
project on an infill site, the project is seeking SB35 streamlined review. To qualify for
SB35, the project must demonstrate the existing buildings are not on a historic register
and the site will be cleared of hazardous waste for residential use, among other
requirements. Staff anticipate multiple rounds of interdepartmental review of the plans
prior to submitting the preliminary entitlements application to the City of Alameda in July
2025. The SB35 review process typically takes about three to six months.

Community Outreach
Staff drafted a communication plan that will guide the community outreach efforts on the
project. The ECRG funding requires the project to perform community engagement,

Page 54 of 368



which includes sharing regular project updates and facilitating community meetings.
Project details, including project updates and timeline, will be shared via the AHA
website and project newsletter. As part of the design and entitlements process, staff will
host community meetings to ensure that members of the Alameda community are made
aware of The Poplar redevelopment project, including the environmental cleanup and
demolition activities onsite, and given the opportunity to get involved with the process
and/or comment on the Development Plan for the site as it takes shape.

The proposed community meeting schedule and topics are as follows:

¢ Project Site and Development Process Overview — April 30th at 6pm-7pm
Design Charette — May 17th at 10am-12pm

Site Reuse and Resiliency — June 4th at 6pm-7pm

Environmental Conditions and Remediation — Date TBD

Final Development Plan Discussion — June 25th at 6pm-7pm

All meetings will be held in person. Board members and the public are encouraged to
attend. The public can also sign up for notifications about The Poplar by following these
instructions:

1. Go to this link: https://www.alamedahsg.org/future-communities/
2. Scroll down and click “Newsletter Sign Up”
3. Fill out the contact information and check the box for “The Poplar”

In addition to the topics of discussion, each meeting will include a timeline overview, a
summary of the last meeting, and a status update on site work including the
environmental scope.

Environmental

Staff continues to work with Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) under the oversight of the
San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (SFBRWQCB) to document
the low levels of environmental concerns and prepare for remediation. Staff will present
the full findings along with a proposed remediation plan to the Board next month.

Demolition

A National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Part 58 environmental study, abatement of
hazardous building materials, and disposition of surplus property on site will be
completed prior to demolition of the existing buildings. The HUD Authority to Use Grant
Funds (AUGF) is required prior to taking any choice limiting actions on the site, which
includes abatement and demolition activities. The NEPA Part 58 will be submitted to
HUD for review this month. Additionally, as required by the NEPA Part 58 study, a
Section 106 consultation letter was submitted to the State Historic Preservation Office
(SHPO) to assess the project’s impact on historic properties. Through extensive
research, the NEPA consultant found no evidence that the site has historical or cultural
significance, nor will the project have a potential effect on nearby existing historical

Page 55 of 368



properties. This information is included in the NEPA, which once submitted and
reviewed by HUD will result in an AUGF.

AHA has listed the surplus property at the site for public auction (Website:
https://www.publicsurplus.com/sms/alamedahsg,callist/current?orgid=18603). Any items
that do not receive any interest will be hauled and disposed of by May 2025. Prior to
demolishing the existing buildings, materials containing lead, asbestos, and/or PCBs
need to be properly abated and disposed of by a licensed contractor according to state
and local regulations. Abatement and demolition are expected to be completed in
Winter 2025.

FISCAL IMPACT

Pre-development expenses at The Poplar are currently being funded by AUSD ROPS
funding and the Capital Impact BFF loan. Environmental specific costs can be
reimbursed through the ECRG grant. Please refer to Attachment 1 for the pre-
development budget.

CEQA
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION

Accept a Report for The Poplar (2615 Eagle Avenue) and Presentation from TWM
Architects + Planners.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Att1_The Poplar Predevelopment Budget

2. Att2 The Poplar TWM Architects Presentation 2025
3. 2615 Eagle Ave - Celebration Poster

Respectfully submitted,

Jenny Wong, Senior Project Manager

Page 56 of 368



The Poplar — Predevelopment Budget
Update as of March 31, 2025

Uses Budget Obligated Spent to Date

Acquisition $2,500,000 $2,500,000 $2,500,000
Demolition & Carrying Costs $600,000 $69,231 $69,231
Design Consultants $800,000 $265,530 $0
Entitlements & Permitting $175,000 30 $0
LIHTC and Financing Fees $206,000 $0 $0
Predevelopment Financing Fees $375,261 $375,261 $375,261
Environmental Costs $500,000 $294,754 $114,932
Other Soft Costs & Contingency $280,739 $175,278 $132,769

Total $5,437,000 $3,680,054 $3,192,193

AUSD ROPS Capital Impact ECRG
BFF

Total Budget $4,888,053 $3,337,000 $534,565
Amount Drawn through March 31, 2025 $3,721,518 $2,645,457* $157,147
Remaining Loan Available $1,166,535** $691,543 $377,418

*Amount of Capital Impact BFF funding that has been drawn down, including an interest reserve of
$266,960. The funds minus interest are being held in LAIF for potential use.

**Amount required to be spent by June 30, 2025. AUSD ROPS is available on a reimbursement

basis.

Page 57 of 368




89€ Jo 85 abed




89¢ JO 6G abed

BuisnoH Ajuno) yjnos
SOJPIOOSSY

BuisnoH s|qppioyy aj|S}pS
Buisnoy d3d

BuisnoH uadpiw

pluIoPD Jo BuisnoH AdiaW
Ajuioyjny

BuisnoH pID|D DJUDLS Jo AjJunod
BuisnoH uap3

Buisnoy Hv3

BuisnoH suazyld

BuisnoH dupqging

BuisnoH 39a39g

BuisnoH spoqy

apn|auj sjuaid

s9ouapisal

008’L 19A0 YjIM pajoijiqoya]
SO IUNWIWIOD a|gqbpPIOoYD |2

s92uapisal 0Og‘s 19A0 Buipiaoid
paj3|dwod saiunwwod
Buisnoy ajqopioyo dn punoib Q¢

6/61 ul pajpiodioduj
L161 Ul pawiod

L0616 VO ‘|oPJ0Y UbS
1934s O 1101
SI2UUD|d + S}O9}IYDIY WML



89€ 40 09 abed

SYINNV1d+ VO ‘VAINY 1V
S1DO31LIHDYV

S3AILINIAV + SLINN 0S¥

SHANL1YVd
J1V1S3 V3 SNINIXVYIN

NOILVAONTY
SININLEVAY
d4d0OHS HLNOS

syun - (Buiobuo) sywied Buiping sjdpiniy
18JUd) SSauUlS - Jwiad Buipjing

Buipling @010 - Hwued Buipjing

uoljeaouay Jajua) suonesadQ - Jwlad buipjing
uoneAouay asnoygni) - Jwiad buipjing
seniuswy 8IS - Jwied Buip|ing

Buip|ing jueine}say - Jwiad uoiijowaq
sioueix3 Buipjing - Jwied Buip|ing
INJFWLEVS3d ONIaTING

Buip|ing 119y - malnay ubiseq
saljuUBWY a)IS - MaIAY ubisaq
sloueixg Buipjing - mainey ubise(q
sJolg)x3 Buip|ing - uoneolddy-ald
ININLHVYLIA ONINNYId

SIVAOYddY ® SM3AINTY YATNVTV 40 ALID




89¢ 4o |9 abed
SYINNV1d+ VO ‘ANVINVO
S1D31IHDYV

S1INN 89
SININLHVAV
ANVL 379vAd044V

ONISNOH 39dld9

V1SIA IAV

ejoBiad NS 8xeT

NUIB 8xeT

JO pua yuou ay} e ejobiad ouo)siy ayy Buipnjoul
‘sBuip|ing ouo)siy Jemaud s,pooytoqybiau ay) Jo
Auew Aqg paaidsul s1 uBisep ay] “pooyloqybiau
U104 Swepy dU0ISIY S,puepeQ Ul 8}IS anuaAy
puels) usujwold e U0 pa)eoo| Si BISINSAY




89€ 4o 29 abed

SYANNVId+ VO ‘OOSIONVYH NVS
S1DO31IHDYV SLINA 0SL

- - SININLEVAY

"00SI0UBl{ UeS JO AlsiaAlun Aglesu
1e pue sBuip|ing uesues)ipal S,pooyloqybiau
puowyoly Jauu] ayj Jo Auew woJj uonelidsul sy

HOINIS FT1avadoddv
aye) ueauelBlIpa|\ s,bulp|ing 8y "o0osiouel4

ONIOV NO 31NLILSNI
ONISNOH 39dld9g

13INOHOO FHL

uesg ul pieasinog Aleas) uo Jsyeay] }auolo)
P|O 8y} JO 8)IS 8y} U0 Pajeoo| sl 18U00)) 8y |




89¢ Jo €9 abed
SYINNVId+ VO VN
S1D31IHDYV oNIaTINg

IVIOHIAWINOD SN A3aXIN

ANVANOD NVINISIM FHL

NIVIA 00€1

BAI}09]|0D) SISUIUIA

"OAIJ03]|0D SIBUJUIN

ay} Buipnjour ‘sBuip|ing Aiuosew ou0sIY S,A)10
ay) pauidsul s ubisap Buipiing ay1 "v9 ‘edeN
UMOJUMOP OLI0ISIY Ul pa}eoo) Si Ui\ 00E L




89€ 4o y9 abed

SYANNVId+ VO “13v4vY NVS
SL1O3L1IHO¥V ONIQTING DINIAVIV

- - NOILVLITIgVHIY OI4OLSIH

ALISH3IAINN NVOININOAQ

SANVIMOAvan




89€ 40 G9 abed

SYINNVYId+ VO ‘OLVAON
S1DILIHDYV

S1INN 8¢l
SININLHVAY JOIN3S
NOILVLITIgVHIY OIdO1SIH

S3ILINNNINOD OHY

NOLINVH 1V SVTIIA

BILIOJIED) OIPAON UOIIWUEL] T2 SB||IA 3U | [euod Anug 0L

~

#
o

EEEEEEEEEEREEREEEEEER R AR SR K




89€ J0 99 abeqd
SYHIANNVId+
S1D031IHDOYV

VO “13v4VYH NVS

S1INN 42
IVILNIAISTY d3ZITvIo3dS

13v4Vvd NVS
40 SH3LSIS NVYOININOA

1IN3IANOD
NVOININOAQ




89€ Jo /9 abed
SYHIANNVId+
S1D031IHDOYV

VO ‘03d0oy

S1INN 49
SININLHVAY
HOINTS 319vAd044V
NOILONHLSNOOD M3AN

ONISNOH HV3

VINO1 V1




89€ Jo 89 abed

SYIANNVId+
S1D3LIHDYV

VO ‘VANTV.L3d

S1INN €0}

SININLHVAY HOINTIS
3SN d3IXIN F1avaAdH044v
NOILONHLSNOD M3AN

ONISNOH d3d

HNI3HO HONA'

\g_';“‘"——

Al
:

EEARLY

\



89€ 40 69 obed

SYIANNVId+

5104 LIHOUWY S311LY3d0dd
ONIHOGHOIAN




89¢ 40 0/ abed




"
0
0
.
4
0
=
o
v
'}

Eagle Avenue

Housing Authority
— of the —

City of Alameda

il

2615 EAGLE AVE, ALAMEDA
CA 94501




Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Joshua Altieri, Community Relations Manager

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Accept a presentation of the 2024 Social Services Report.
BACKGROUND

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) partners with a variety of social
service agencies and community organizations to provide AHA residents and AHA
housing program participants with direct access to critical services and resources. From
infants to seniors, there are programs and partnerships that AHA residents and housing
program participants can leverage to enhance their quality of life. Critical services like
financial assistance and medical services, as well as social and recreational
programming are available at AHA properties.

DISCUSSION

This presentation highlights how AHA’s community partners interact daily and serve
AHA residents and AHA housing program participants. The information in this
presentation was provided by each of AHA’s community partners and represents the
scope and volume of services offered to AHA’s tenants and housing program
participants.

FISCAL IMPACT
No fiscal impact.

CEQA
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the 2024 Social Services Report.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2024 Social Services Presentation

Respectfully submitted,

& &

Page 72 of 368



{_}%J-‘?#ﬁ (lriohs

Joshua Altieri, Community Relations Manager

Page 73 of 368



89 Bm:._m A m_qum_,q jo AD
i M.ﬂ bi0*Bsyepawee'mmm o M.ﬂ
>p_\_o£:< m ccccc H 3:05:< m ccccc H

epawe|y Jo AJD
— 3y} Jo —
Allioyiny buisnoH 4‘.‘

}10d0Yy
SIJIAIDS |eID0S

v c0c




pojsLiebgo A0 epawe|y Jo A31D
— S M._ b1o*Bsyepawie|e:Mmm ot o — M._
Ajuoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH {

‘syuedioiued

weldosd Suisnoy pue siueual SYHY 01 Pala}jo S82IAISS JO dWN)oA pue adoos ay) syuasaldal pue siaulied
Allunwwod s\YHY 10 yoea Aq papinold sem uoneluasald siyl ul uonewojul oy “swuedioiied weigold Suisnoy
VHY pue sjusapisal YHY 9AI8S pue 1oelalul siaulied Allunwwod s yYHY Moy s1ysnysiy uoneiuasald siy|

‘91gejleAe os)e aje uiwwelgold jeuollealoal pue |eIo0s 1INg ‘S82IAISS

1eQ1IpaW pue adue1sISSe |elouBUly 9] SBIIAISS 1821110 8yl 1snl 10N 841 Jo Alenb Jlayl 8oueyua 0] 98eIaA9)
ueo sjuedionued wesdoid Suisnoy pue sjuapisal YHY 1eyi sdiysiaulnied pue sweigold ale alay) ‘sioluas

01 S1uejul Wol "S821N0SaJ pue SJIAISS 1BI1111D 0] SS809k 10al1p syuedioiued welgold uisnoy YHY pue
sj1uaplsal YHY apliaoid 01 suoneziuesdlo Allunwiuwod pue salouage 99IAI8S 1B100s JO sadAl e yiim siaulried YHY

buisnoH puoAaq oedwsy S,YHY




8@PIv@RPFED AYID
— 9y} Jo —
Ajuoyiny buisnoH ‘._

1I2M BUIAI + 2A12Y Buie)s « suondaul
d43LN3ID JOIN3S

ADILSVI

A—
LISVESL \ _ \I

TR y

43IMOd TvdIDINN
YaIwvily

&b

Wy

bio*bsyepawe|e'mmm

VA3nvv 40
€NTD STHID B SA0I

N\

annesoqeliod  REJIIGMOY(

- mem ,
Z %N\ P v hNp

LEGT D0UTS pUR[S] 3t Farpacy

JNVE 004
YAINYIVY Q.*J
Yo

Vaawviv

v

& S3ILSAUN

uneaH fQunon epawe)y

juswpedag _a ...
YijeaH alqnd

T oy

PPaWD|D
anneloqe||od

,@\. E_on_
A /m_umEm_<

AjJlunww o)

epawely jo AJD
— 33 Jo —
Ayuoyiny buisnoH ‘._

ALINDIA NOILYH3IdO

N

9ouapuadapul
S¥3AT3 JO4 ¥IINID

ZJ
*

VAdNVI1V
40 HOdT100

sdiyssauped Y7

CFsS
NS




goepouIskedo A3D . . epawely Jo A3
g ﬂ-ﬂ b.10*Bsyepawe|e' MMm e — ﬂ.ﬂ
Ajuoyiny buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH

PaINQUISIP S|e3W Z67°LT »
PaAJ3S Spjoyasnoy YHY anbiun gz
SJUDAD UOIINQLIISIP Jueg poo |B10] Y

yueg poo4d epawely




892P9EIHkedo AJID epawely Jo A3
e, U 6107 BsyepaLele M HE g
joyany buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

0S'TT SIINIDS
SC'861 Ssau||s/\ pue yijesH
0S'8¢€ uoneanp3j
QL8381 92UB]SISSY Jual|d

sjuapisay sfunaam
B0LIBS JO SINOH paieadnpun poRzIjENPIAIPU]

sadA ] juswadeuep ase)

"S9IIAI9S JudwIdeuew ased sulpinoid Ag pue ‘SJUSAS 3311S-uo 3uUl3dNPUOD
‘S9IIAJDS |BI111JD 03 SIUIPISAI YHY Suildauuod Aq 341 Jo Aljenb ay3 seoueyua jjels sdaisaj] “sa1uadoid paumo-yHY ||e
1€ sjuapIsad yum Ajiep 3unoelsjul Jjeis 93isuo yum Jaulied ajgenjeaul ue s sdaisali] Uaulsed s92IAISS |BID0S 9USUO SYHY

(MBIAIDAQ) sdD]1S3}IT




892PBIHkedo AJID . . epawely Jo A3
— ol jo — bio*bsyepawe|e'mmm — oo —
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

A

Sd3

& WR20p3 ¢ Soemy) SRS T

._.mmu_._W_ "S90IAI8S
panleonal seiadold 11e SS0I0E S1UBpisal Qg 18nD
01U 1818004 6 L-AIAOD PUE 10Ys Nj4 B 19npuos

01 Aoewieyd sBundg ssauyspn yiim palasuned

Sd31S84i -21und 104s 61L-AINOD pue joys nig

‘'sawioy J1ayl ul Suide AjaAloae
a)lym salouagiaws Joj Suliedsid uo AjAanoe ogulq
pue ssejo ssaupsaiedald AouaBiawa ue apinold 01

uldaqui Ayoyiny Suisnoy epawe)y 2yl yiim paiauned
Sd3lseli] ;sse)n ssaupaltedald Aouaiiawy

‘ue|d 88elueApy |ENQ 2yl Wol} }1jauad 0} S821Nn0sal
pue s]00] paAlaoal sJUBpPISal GZ J8AQ "uonejuassald
180-1pajA PUE 81B21P3js B 10NPUOD 0] SjUaUEW I
lasiey yum passunied g431SollT :2jusuewIa 1asie))|




892N ugHRkedo AJD epawely Jo A3
) L 6107 BsyepaLele M HE g
joyany buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

. 9Juepingd pue yoddns siy
10} [nja3e48 we | ‘SulylAIana 10j A0NdIL
‘noA yuey] ‘12uaisi| ajeuoissedwod
e se d|qejlene uaaq sey pue d3ji| Aw
jo pouiad 3uiduajjeyd 3sow ayj unp
yoddns ajgenjeaul papinoad sey J0nd4],,

‘1¥Vvg pue 19]3nQO A132049 e suoiyisod Jageuew 031 pajowosd Aj3uad3. 919M SIUIPISI
410g "SM3IAIIUI ¥o0W 3uUl13d0NPUOI pue SawNsaJ J19yl Suizepdn Ul SJUSPISSI OM] 3SISSe 03 Jusawadeuew
3sed 3uipuelsino papinosd (S921AI3S [B120S JO 4010341Q) [ J0A3J] :JY31YSIH JuapIsay I3e||IA p|o12soy

}oeduw sdajsaii




g92noygmkedo AJD . . epawely Jo A3
— ol jo — bio*bsyepawe|e'mmm — oo —
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

VA3InWvv 40
e'TO STHID B SA0HU

'720¢ AON/320 3ulnp Jjeis 399V Aq paronpuod saipiadold Ajiwey yHY 1e
Sjuana 3uiqel snid ‘ugiedwed yaeasino SAISUIIXD Ue 0} NP SEM JUBW||0JUD Ul 3SO0( 3yl P3||0Jud
9J9m YinoA yHY zt Ajuo usym 20z 1sn8ny 20uls %0/ Ag maud diysiaquia|N ¢z 41oqwaag

jo se diysisquiaw (39gV) qn|J sHI9 pue shog epawe|y ue o0jul pa||0Jud YInoA YHY €/ Jo |ero]

buiwweabo.ad jooyds.ia))y




892N EsRkedo AJD . . epawely Jo A3
— ol jo — bio*bsyepawe|e'mmm — oo —
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

"11UN |EUOIIE3IID B|IqOoW S,ddYV BIA
siuswiedy ezueladsy 1e YinoA yHY 40} (SAepsaupapn uo) Sujwwesdosd |euollealdal |ooydsiayse Apjeam
-1q ‘@944 Suipinoad usaq sey QdyV ‘2Z0z 22uIS (adyV) uswiedaq syded pue uollealdsy epawely
Jo A1) Aq pa1onpuod SuoISSas uollealdal djiqow e pajedilied YinoA YHY 9T JO |e101 B ‘4Z0T U]

buiwwe.abo.ad jooyds.1d}}y 2410




s9eneYssfedo AID epawely jo A3D
gy ﬂ-ﬂ b10*Hsyepswe|e:mmm N m._
joyany buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH

‘siseq Apjoamiq e uo sjuswedy ezuesads]
1B SUOISSaS S14eJd/He Apjaam-1q 93Jy apinosd 03 AZplugmelq YHM S10eJ1U0D YHY
28pligmelq Ag paisoy suoissas s1jedd pue siie e paledidinied YyanoA YHY 29T 4O |e10]

buiwwe.adbo.d J00YDS.19})y D10\ UDAJ




g92NoHgRkedo AJD . . epawely Jo A3
— ol jo — bio:bsyepawe|e'mmm — oo —
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

ﬁ—w 26113r3q

"jueg poo4 epawe|y ayi Agq papiroid syulip pue syoeus 234} Aofua
S99pualle ‘uolusaw 01 0N ‘(suswisedy ezuesadsy) Ajuadoud Ajjwey 1sa34e| S, YHY 1e Aepsaupa
A1ans ,9oeds ajes, e Aofus ued yinoA yHY 1eys st sweidoidd adyy pue a3prugmeaq 2yl JO 10949 3yl

,odeds ajes,,




892Pe ugEkedo AID epawely jo A3D
~ a0 — M.ﬂ b1o*Bsyepawe|e’ MMM o 16— M._
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

o

v S
Ity

syueddiyied weadoud pue syueddiyied weadoud pue
Sjueual YHY 031 palnquisip Sjueual YHY 01 painquisip
$19)d11 S,V puepjeQ 2344 0ST $319)211 S100Y puepjeQ aald ¢

SJUdA3j bunJaods




892N UgRkedo AJD . . epawely Jo A3
— ol jo — bio:bsyepawe|e'mmm — oo —
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

r

1'% .H_E_._ wiial

H_m__._______,._U_n_ AYdIDIN _1__.____._-.. Oou @AeY N1Im lljsuaqieloueuly siyy ‘spjoyasnoy vHY
va3 E{.—{ 22 01 (dv3) welgold aouelsissy A31aug s, dinY ysnoays
S1)1g 91110918 AJY1UuoW U0 1UNOISIP 9% GZ B JoAN9p 0]

v
91qe sem epawely 4O AHD |yl O AJoYIny sulsnoH ayl
TN A A 3
‘(dINY) 18mod 1edioluniy epawe)y yim diysiasulied uj

EuTny 10 Ao HE O JEME

diysisulied dWV




goepousRkedo A3D . . epawely Jo A3
— ol jo — bio*bsyepawe|e'mmm — oo —
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

x

VA3awWwviv

‘01j0j10d S \YHY ul sa134adoud J4aylo 03 GZOZ Ul S9nuiluod
weJsdoud 8yl ‘s|eldalew |euolleanpa pue ‘suiq 1sodwod ‘s3eq
9101 9|9A23. PaAI9IaJ SJUBU] SHSIA 9IS 9SaY3 SulNg “Hels
weJsgoud 91sep) 0497 epawe)y Jo A1) Ag SHSIA wod) palljauaq
9AeY suowwo) uyolanii pue ‘sjuswiiedy ezuesads]
‘Juswe|(q ‘g auuy ‘eze|d duapuadapul je syueudl YHY

diysisulied epauwely jo A)D




s9eneyssfedo AID epawely jo A3D
oy ﬂ.ﬂ bJio*Bsyepawe|e:Mmmm e M._
joyany buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

'9¢0¢ Al4ea /9z0g 21e| sl uolejuswa|dwi parasdie]

"SUOISSIWD UOQJed 3dnNpaJ pue ‘Dpeys ‘Auauads ppe 01 YHY 2|qeusd
pjnom 3uipun4 ‘Apadoud sjuswnedy ezuesads3 ayl punoue

pue ul s93J1 Jue|d 03 spunj uielqo o3 uoinedijdde juesd aJi4|ed
20T s,.epawe)y Jo AND ay3 ul papnjoul sem sjuswliedy ezuesads]
“uawnedaq Ajjiqeuleisns epawe|y o A1) ayl yum diyssauyped
pue uolleulpsood ul ‘Ajuoyiny SuisnoH ayi ‘yzoc Ae Ul

VAaiawviv

diysiaulied epawely jo A1) &




s9eneEgsfedo AID epawely jo A3D
iy ﬂ-ﬂ 610 Bsyepawee:mmm D — ﬂ-_
joyany buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH

€707 031 uosiaedwod uj uonedilied Ajlwey
VHY Ul 9Se3J0ul %8T Uy ‘YHY W04} 319M
sol|lwe} 9s0Y3 Jo £9¢ ‘pal|dde saljiwe) epawely
Jo A11D T09 49nQ ‘Ajdde 01 sajjiwey 40} w0}
auljuo ue dojanap o3 wes3doud Aoy J91y3ia.14
epawely jo A1) 2yl paisisse }Jeis VHY ‘vz0¢ ul

‘uoseas Aepijoy yoea syuedpiyied wesdoud
duisnoy YHY pue siueual YHY 03 S9|1ws

Auew s3uliq weadoud AoJ si91y3ijadi4 epawe|y
3y} yum diysisauised Suipuels uo| S,YHVY

W¥3B0¥d AOL




892Po UsHkedo AYID &
oLy ﬂ.ﬂ bio*Bsyepawie|e’ MMM e e ﬂ.ﬂ
Ayuoyiny buisnoH

Ajuoyiny buisnoH

epawely Jo A3D
— Bu3 Jo —
Ajuouyiny Buisnoy

JIOVNVW AlLdidOdd ALISNO
JNOA LOVINOD 3ISVIld ‘13719V.L1 FJHL MOJYJOH OL

‘SUCIIDD|41112094 YHY

—— 119y1 @18|dw oo o1 JO
‘4‘ osn |[puosiad 10} 19|gDP}

2yl ®sh UpD sijuspisay

d@* ‘wooy Allunwwo)

= 9Y3 Ul 14-1/\\ 934} 9Y1 3Sh J0o/pue 13|qe} ploJpuy

ue 3no 29yd 0} Aylunjioddo ay3 asde||IA pIa14as0Y pue
‘Sjuswpedy ezuesads] ‘eze|d 9ouapuadapu| wuawelq
‘g duuy ‘suowwo) uyold1i 1e syuapisal sapinold YHY

S3133M OML JdO4d 1319VL
dIOCAANV NV MOJJOod

9pIAIQ] |edibig a2y) bulbplig




g92NousHRRedo AJID epawely Jo A3
) L 6107 BsyepaLele M HE g
joyany buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

‘Saul|

AeqgsueJ] pue |ed0| Jsued] DV ||e 01 SS22e 9344 Sulpinoid
SJuUapIsal 03 spJed 4addi) uo sassed snq ysued] Jy
paywijun sapinoid yoiym wesdoud ssed snq e si ssedAse]

;y_&mwmm@_ﬁ W 4 ‘wesdoud ssedAse] ay) 0jul pa||0Jud SJUIPISD
1 noA Jo} i

_wum_mmm.wEE:mlm_m;;:m ‘ , <—l—< mm \.._...._.mu.m WQQHWQH_._l_ —.._u._\s Q_F.._WLQCU_LWQ C_ .WNON >OZ\HUO
S3SNQ sUeI| DY U0 3ai) [anel] o B l
" Ul 11043 Yoeallno aAIsualIxa ue Jayje ing "wessoud

ay1 ul paredidiped sjuapisal YHY v ‘Yoz Joquiardas uj

jeany Aeg a1 01 podssed Inoj

SSDJASET wum
"MO[|I/\\ U[OJUIT pUE ‘SUoWwWo)

11219A7 ‘93e||IA PI2142S0Y ‘Wuawe|q g duuy 1e syuapisal

01 ssedAse3 ue sapinoad jisued] Jy yum diysisuned s YHY

iSJuUapIsay

we.abo.ldd uoineliodsue.d |




s9eneBssfedo AID epawely jo A3D
iy ﬂ-ﬂ 610 Bsyepawee:mmm D — ﬂ-_
joyany buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH

VA3nviv 40 .
G0N0 STHIO '8 SAOE 994} 104 $9dAdIq J1edau pue

'$9]9Ad1q pue s1sw|ay aiq dn xi} 03 saipuadoud YHY
pa1eUOP JO8Y ‘¥Z0T Ul PaMSIA 3|10 31 ‘P20 Ul

ddng @ suoinjeuoq 3|2Ad019g




s9eneyssfedo AID epawely jo A3D
s ﬂ.ﬂ 610" Bsyepawie|e MMM e ﬂ.ﬂ
joyany buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH

‘'SsaupaJedald
‘uluue|d ai1e) 9dueApY IN0ge SJUdPISAL 91eINPI Aduadisw3 noge sioluas ajeanpa 03 sweadoud
01 sa1149doud YHY SHSIA jels Ajuno) epawe|y |euol11ea429J 3DNPUO0I J4els YHY pue sdaisay

P ™, T R B

SNJ204 J01UdS




89209 tEERedo AYID . . epawely jo A3D
— a1 o — bio:bsyepawe|e'mmm — oo —
Aoyiny buisnoH { Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

[I12AA BUIAIT « 3AI10Y BULABLS » SUDIIDBUUOD BUINEW
d31LN3D JdOIN3S

ADJILSVIA

"'S3U119JJ0 J93Ud)

JOIUDS Y DI11SEeIAl ||e Inoge SIudpISal YHY 91eonpa

03 siseq Ajueyenb uo (Qgy pue d|) se1xuadoud Joluss
VHYV SHSIA JJB1S M11Se|\l U9p|0 pue Qg pasde synpe
JO SpPa3u 9yl 199W 0} UOI}e3Id3J pUe ‘UoIIeINPD
‘Yy|eay Jo sease ay) Ul SAJIAISS pue swesdosd

Jo A1auien e sapinoud 191ua) JOIUSS MIIISe|N

SNJ204 J01UdS




epawely jo A0
— a3 Jo — _
Ajuoyiny buisnoy 4.«_

bio*bsyepawe|e'mmm

892Pe usHkedo AYID
— 9y3 Jo —
Ajuoyiny buisnoH

"SUOIII3 7207 JOQWISAON Y3 J0} 491ud) Sull0/ B palsoy eze|d duapuadapul

E
= —
E
i
g =

Aang 21A1D




sEpRBEPFeLD AJID A
oars s QG .10°BSyepaLuele MMM i s QP
j1oyiny buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

ezuelads3 e InQO YSIN |euonieN ezuelads3 je InQ YSIN |euoireN

INO IYDbIN |JeuonienN




8EEDOWRPFELD AYID A
faviouny buss bio*bsyepasweje:mmm e ﬂ.ﬂ
j1oyiny buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH

20T 1970100 Ul BISIA BIIY 202 42903100 Ul BISIA By

JUDSAJ 3JIAIDRS A)1ddoud




8P 8BPFeD AYID Ay
oy burs ﬂ-_ bio*Bsyepawie|e’ MMM e ﬂ.ﬂ
Ajuoyiny buisnoH Ayuoyiny buisnoH

‘sonss| Aue 1noge siuapisal Yyim Ajnoalip adedus 03 pue yuswageuew Auadold 01 paiejal
sajepdn juelodwi aleys 01 JOQUIBAON pPuk 18q0o100 Ul SSUI199|A 11BYUMO] PB10oNPUO0D Jje1S YHY

sbui}od 1eyuMo |




s9eneEssfedo AID
E_kﬂuwﬁ %c_ﬂso_._ ‘.ﬂ @\_ o° @m £ e _Um L m_ B'MMM >mnwhcmﬁuwo|>u_u ‘._
joyiny buisnoH 4

ainyuing saiddng 220

S12r1aoyd SSaNISNg

s Sijopsield

"SWI91l WOO0JIY1_g puB uayoiy JNJasn Jaylo pue ‘alemie)) ‘9i1emy 009 ‘sa1418)101 ‘swall SuIues)d apn)oul Yyolym
S1I3 8180 BWOY JO AISANBP 91BUIPI00D 0] SI9p|oy Jayonop SuisnoH Aousgiawg 01 Yoealino palonpuod tmum. VHY

S.IDP|OH J19YDNOA
buisnoH Aduabiswig 10} SN




A
bJ10'Bsyepaweje'Mmm R F M._
Ayuoyiny buisnoH 4

892D 002|968 A3D
— 33 jo —
Aoyiny buisnoH -

[I2A BULAIT = 2A1DY BulAels - SUOII2aUUoD BUINel

d3LN3D HOIN3S

epawe[y JO 939[[0D) q NIILSVIA

VAd3nviv 40

w> _ ML o m o SAAOHYEIIHIIIN INILTIH SEXQAHIIIN
3 o a9 ‘ FN . _ €O STHID '8 SAOH
Jepawely

V4

‘'salouagde Allunwiwod 9sayl Yyum paltaulnied yHy 11oddns uoneondde Suisnoy pue sieindwod
01 SS99208 9)ge1inba syueondde apinoid 01 pue 20z 1oquiada( ul 1s1) 1iem guisnoy ayl pauado yHY

S19j3ud) uonedijddy 1s17 Hem

\\Q .“...“ h - 2
g e

m%_.\..::/




bio*bsyepawe|e'mmm

ésuoinysand Auy
pue noA)>ueyl




Housing Authority PHONE: (510) 747-4300
= of the — FAX: (510) 522-7848
City of Alameda TTY/TRS: 711

701 Atlantic Avenue  Alameda, California 94501-2161

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners

From: Sarah Raskin, Housing Development Specialist

Date: April 16, 2025

Re: Approve a Resolution to Quitclaim an Access Easement at PanAm
Way.

BACKGROUND

On March 13, 2014, the Board adopted Resolution No.882 Authorizing the Approval of a
Settlement Agreement among the City of Alameda (the City), the Housing Authority of
the City of Alameda (AHA), and the Alameda Unified School District (AUSD). The
Settlement Agreement related to real and personal property exchanges at Alameda
Point and the Encinal Terminals Area for AUSD funding and funding for affordable
housing development by AHA. The Resolution also authorized the Executive Director to
accept conveyance of 20 acres of property at Alameda Point from the City, and to enter
into an agreement to exchange the Alameda Point property conveyed by the City.

The Settlement Agreement is related to two prior existing agreements - one from March
2000 and the other from November 1991. The first agreement, the Mastick Agreement,
was between the City and AUSD. The second agreement, the Pass-Through
Agreement, was between the City and AHA, together as successors to the Community
Improvement Commission (CIC) of the City of Alameda (“Redevelopment Agency”),
which was dissolved in February 2012. The Pass-Through Agreement addressed the
allocation of redevelopment tax increment revenues between the former
Redevelopment Agency and AUSD and created a special District Housing Fund which
was to be used by AUSD to increase the supply of Alameda's affordable housing.
However, AUSD did not obligate any of these funds, approximately $4.6 million that was
held in trust for AUSD, prior to the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency. These
funds were designated as Housing Asset Funds.

The Settlement Agreement permitted the City to convey an approximate 20-acre parcel
at Alameda Point to AHA. Immediately thereafter, AHA reconveyed the parcel to AUSD,
pursuant to an Exchange and Purchase Sale Agreement between AHA and AUSD. The
Exchange and Purchase Sale Agreement authorized the Executive Director to enter into
an agreement to exchange, and to exchange with AUSD, the Alameda Point property
conveyed by the City and $1.2 million for the former Island High School site (Everett

& &

Page 102 of 368



Commons, located at 2437 Eagle Avenue). AUSD assigned its rights to AHA and
released all claims to the approximately $4.6 million in Housing Asset Funds.

As part of the Settlement Agreement, the City released real property to AHA through a
Quitclaim Deed with Reservation of Easements and Covenants, Restrictions and
Conditions on September 18, 2014. The easement area is located between Main Street
and Pan Am Way in the City of Alameda.

DISCUSSION

The City is collaborating with MidPen on a final map for the West Midway/RESHAP
development at Alameda Point. The project is bound by the streets of
Tower/Main/WestMidway/Pan Am. With recordation of the final map, various parcels
would be transferred to MidPen for their project. The easement area that was
designated to AHA by the City through the aforementioned Quitclaim Deed is located
within the future MidPen parcel.

On February 5, 2025, the City requested that AHA quitclaim the existing easement to
remove the encumbrance on the land, which would allow the City to transfer the parcel
to MidPen.

The issue has been reviewed by Counsel and they have determined that since AHA no
longer owns the property, this access easement may be transferred. Counsel has
prepared a resolution and quitclaim deed which are attached in draft form. The
resolution provides for the Executive Director to make minor adjustments subject to
Counsel approval.

FISCAL IMPACT
None. Legal fees will be covered by the City of Alameda.

CEQA
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
Approve a Resolution to Quitclaim an Access Easement at PanAm Way.

ATTACHMENTS

1. DRAFT Resolution to Execute Quitclaim Easement on Pan Am Way
2.  DRAFT Quitclaim Deed

3.  Resolution No. 882 - Settlement Agreement AHA and AUSD

Respectfully submitted,
ol

Sarah Raskin, Housing Development Specialist

Page 103 of 368



Page 104 of 368



DRAFT

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA

Resolution No.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
HOUSING AUTHORITY AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE CITY OF
ALAMEDA FOR EASEMENT AT REAL PROPERTY WHICH IT
NO LONGER OWNS BY THE HOUSING AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2014, the Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda (“Housing Authority”) accepted fee title to approximately 20 acres of
real property at Alameda Point along Pan Am Way (“Property”) from the City of
Alameda (“City”) together with an appurtenant access easement (“Easement”)
pursuant to that certain Quitclaim Deed with Reservation of Easements and
Covenants, Restrictions and Conditions executed on September 18, 2014 and
recorded in the official records of Alameda County (“Official Records”) on
October 8, 2014 as Instrument No. 2014245280; and

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2014, the Housing Authority transferred fee
title of the Property to the Alameda Unified School District (“District”) pursuant
to that certain Quitclaim Deed executed on September 25, 2014 and recorded in
the Official Records on October 8, 2014 as Instrument No. 2014245281 (“District
Deed”); and

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority no longer owns the Property and as
the Easement was appurtenant to the Property and, therefore, transferred to the
District pursuant to the District Deed, the Housing Authority has no rights to or
interest in, the Easement; and

WHEREAS, the City is collaborating with MidPen on a final map for the
West Midway/RESHAP development at Alameda Point and the Easement is no
longer needed, and is in conflict with future plans for the site, and the City has
requested the Housing Authority to execute a quitclaim deed with respect to the
Easement; and

Page 105 of 368



DRAFT

WHEREAS, as the District has no interest in the Property nor the
Easement and as a quitclaim deed does not include any warranties as to title
which would create any liability for the District, the Housing Authority is willing
to execute a quitclaim deed with respect to the Easement to the City in the form
attached as Exhibit A and deliver same to the City for recordation (“Quitclaim
Deed”;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA DOES HEREBY
RESOLVE:

Section1.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as if set
forth in full.

Section 2.  The Housing Authority has no interest in the Property nor
the Easement.

Section3. The City of Alameda (“City”) has requested the Housing
Authority execute and acknowledge a quitclaim deed with respect to the
Easement.

Section 4.  The Executive Director or designee is hereby authorized and
directed to proceed execute the Quitclaim Deed subject to any minor conforming,
technical or clarifying changes approved by the Executive Director and Housing
Authority legal counsel and to deliver same to the City for recordation. The
Executive Director and President of the Housing Authority are hereby further
authorized and directed to take such further actions and execute and record such
documents as are necessary to execute the Quitclaim Deed from the City of
Alameda.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of April, 2025.

ATTEST:
Vanessa M. Cooper Carly Grob, President
Executive Director/Secretary Board of Commissioners

Page 106 of 368



DRAFT

Adopted:

, 2025

Page 107 of 368



DRAFT

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

City of Alameda

2263 Santa Clara Avenue
Alameda, CA 94501

Attn: City Engineer

APN: (Space Above for Recorder’s Use Only)
The undersigned grantor declares: Exempt from recording fees per Govt Code 27282 & 6103
Documentary Transfer tax is -0- as conveyance is
exempt pursuant to Rev & Tax Code §11922.

QUITCLAIM DEED

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA, a public body, corporate and politic
(“Grantor”) does hereby remise, release and forever quitclaim to the CITY OF ALAMEDA, a
California municipal corporation (“Grantee”), all of Grantor’s claim, rights, title, and interests, that
Grantor has or may have, whatsoever in and to those certain easements in the real property
located in the City of Alameda, County of Alameda, State of California as such easements are
described in Exhibit A and depicted in Exhibit B, which are attached hereto and incorporated
herein by this reference (“Real Property”). As of the date of this Quitclaim Deed, Grantor does
not own the benefited property defined in the easement documents referenced in Exhibit A.

Dated: , 2025 GRANTOR:

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
ALAMEDA, a public body, corporate and
politic

By:
Carly Grob, President

ATTEST:

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP

By:

Adrian Guerra,
Housing Authority Counsel

Page 108 of 368



DRAFT

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the Quitclaim Deed dated
, 2025 from the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA, a public body,
corporate and politic to the CITY OF ALAMEDA, a municipal corporation (“City”) is hereby accepted
by the undersigned officer and agent of the City and that the City consents to the recording of the
Quitclaim Deed in the official records of Alameda County, California.

Dated: , 2025 CITY:

CITY OF ALAMEDA, a municipal
corporation

By:
Jennifer Ott, City Manager

Page 109 of 368



DRAFT

EXHIBIT A TO QUITCLAIM DEED

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

FEBRUARY 19, 2025
JOB NO.: 1087-010

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
PORTION OF ACCESS EASBEMENT TO BE QUITCLAIMED
PER DN 2014-245280 AND 2014-2452B81
ALAMEDA POINT
ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA

REAL PROPERTY, SITUATE IN THE INCORPORATED TERRITORY OF THE CITY OF
ALAMEDA, COUNTY OF ALAMEDA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEING A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN ACCESS EASEMENT DESCRIBED IN THAT
CERTAIN QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
RECORDED OCTOBER 8, 2014, IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2014-245280 OF OFFICIAL
RECORDS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE CQUNTY RECORDER OF ALAMEDA COUNTY, AND A
PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN ACCESS EASEMENT DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN
QUITCLAIM DEED TO THE ALAMEDA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT RECORDED OCTOBER
B, 2014, IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2014-245281 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS IN SAID
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF ALAMEDA COUNTY, MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID EASEMENT (BOTH 2014-
245280 AND 2014-245281), SAID CORNER BEING A POINT OF THE WESTERN LINE
OF MAIN STREET (WIDTH VARIES);

THENCE, FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, ALONG THE SOUTHERN AND WESTERN
LINES OF SAID EASEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING SEVEN (7) COURSES:

1) NORTH 47°37'35" WEST 60.11 FEET,
2) ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 30.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE

LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 37°35°'07", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 15.68 FEET,

3) NORTH B5®°12'42" WEST 1,585.20 FEET,
4) NORTH 04°47'18" EAST 7.47 FEET,
5) ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 100.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE

LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 61°20'14", AN ARC DISTANCE
CF 107.05 FEET,

6) ALONG THE ARC OF A COMPOUND 295.50 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE
LEFT, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS SOUTH
33°27'04" WEST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 2B°39'46", AN
ARC DISTANCE OF 147.83 FEET,

7) NORTH 85°12'42" WEST 1,268.31 FEET, AND

a) NORTH 04°47'18" EAST 64.50 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID WESTERN LINE, SOUTH 85°12'42" EAST 32.71 FEET TO
A POINT ON THE EOUNDARY LINE OF SAID EASEMENTS;

Page 110 of 368



DRAFT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FEBRUARY 19, 2025
PAGE 2 OF 3 JOB NO.: 1087-022

THENCE, ALONG SAID BOUNDARY LINE, THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES:

1) ALONG THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT 40.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO
THE LEFT, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH
83°58'53" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 79°11'35", AN
ARC DISTANCE OF 55.29 FEET,

2) SOUTH 85°12'42" EAST 288.07 FEET, AND
3) ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 40.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE
LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 46°34'03", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 32.51 FEET;
THENCE, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY LINE, SOUTH 85°12'42" EAST 55.95 FEET;
THENCE, NORTH 04°47'18" EAST 3.00 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID BOUNDARY
LINE, SAID POINT BEING THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF PARCEL TWO, AS SAID
PARCEL TWO IS DESCRIBED IN SAID DEEDS (BOTH 2014-245280 AND 2014-
245281} ;
THENCE, ALONG SAID BOUNDARY LINE, THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES:
1} SOUTH 85°12'17" EAST 697.22 FEET, AND
2) ALONG THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT 20.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO
THE LEFT, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH
04°32'55" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF B9°44'58", AN
ARC DISTANCE OF 31.33 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID BOUNDARY LINE, SOUTH 85°12'42" EAST 60.50 FEET TO
A POINT ON SAID BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID EASEMENT;

THENCE, ALONG SAID BOUNDARY LINE, THE FOLLOWING TEN (10) COURSES:

1) SOUTH 04°47'18" WEST 4.91 FEET,

2) ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 30.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE
LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90°00'00", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 47.12 FEET,

3) SOUTH 85°12'42" EAST 15.60 FEET,

4) ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 328.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE
RIGHT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 41°52'58", AN ARC
DISTANCE OF 239.77 FEET,

5) SOUTH 43°19'44" EAST 31.90 FEET,

Page 111 of 368



DRAFT

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FEBRUARY 19, 2025
PAGE 3 OF 3 JOB NOD.: 1087-022
&) ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 105,00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE

LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 41°52'58", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 76.75 FEET,

7) SOUTH 85912'42" EAST 1,467.62 FEET,

8) ALONG THE ARC OF A TANGENT 15.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE
LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 74°32'02", AN ARC DISTARNCE
OF 19.51 FEET,

9) SOUTH B5°12'42" EAST 44.35 FEET, AND

10) SOUTH 00°33'45" WEST 86.12 FEET TO SAID POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 2.78 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS.

ATTACHED HERETO IS A PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAl. DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS
REFERENCE MADE A PART HERECF.

END OF DESCRIFTION

MARK H. WEHBER, P.L.S.
L.5. NO. 7260

o 2 A

Page 112 of 368



DRAFT

EXHIBIT B TO QUITCLAIM DEED

DEPICTION OF PROPERTY

EWALD AW AYMOIN LS3M™ 35 D0 LU LYTEE3AW AVMAIN 153N 3d 20 ALY IASLYIA0EOVIMDL- 280170

(J10-LB0L 0N ar

SHINNYId = SHOAIAHNS = SHIFNIDONI TAID

WO DONYED MMM

9Grr-gEL(016) INUNISOH m D v

ZZE0-998 (526) NOWVH NYS

ST0T ‘61 AMVYETA

VINYOAITVD "VAIWYTY
INIOd YAIWVTY

187SHT-P10T ANV 08TSHT-P10Z ¥ad - GINIVIOLING 39 OL INTWASYT SSHIDV 40 NOILIOd

NOILATIDSHA TVOAT ANVANOIIV OL LV'1d

2401 193HS S3EVL 3AEND ONY 3N H04 € 133HS 335

| _
DSBS M.ZP.ZLEEN 4 7= |
e vy 4\| A CIMYIOLD 38 011G 107 ONY | IBRELE108 |
A 7 T > R 202 Na y R |
| AL _..WV/E (M, 70,£2555 08Z55Z-7I0Z ¥3d ININSY3 SS300¥ QA-BE-VIV |
31 SN 59921 MZrZLGEN | -
= - R, >
/ - L1689 3,L1ZLGES < gl -
8L910Z-TT0T &W&\_B b f . e 91 (@ELCEseN V)
=11 [
[ T40¥Vd A NIVI3Y OL [826H2~17102 NG | 891022207 ‘1 10UV | |
m 182G¥Z-¥10Z ONV . _ QT N TR
i oszesz-vioz N OML T30V | mzesz-vioz any |
7 —2102 CECPLENESE 082S¥2-¥10Z NO |
| m:umumm_ el SSIIOV ONLSI | dad nanasva
J02-09-Y1V . : SSIIIV ONISEKT ! |
202
SV

=

m 018661-€107
s 2 L 8191022207
i = 17404vd
. A ) Y 10 . . |
£ Qllllllll||l|.i.%ﬂ1ﬂmmgmw |||||||| T

]
217 8L9102-220C FOV 8L7=YaNV 7
1 TIUVd Q3NYIOLIND 38 OL'18ZSPZ—¥10Z ONY

OBESYZ-#104 H3d INIW3SYE 55300V

ONINNIDZE 30 INIOd 80d

TWiavA (u)
HIENNN LN3WND00 NG
S3HV v
aNIDAT
o
m
m
[as)
m
| o
o
=

Page 113 of 368



DRAFT

SN AT AVMAIN 153 Tvd 20 LUFLYIdSAY AYMOIN 153IM3vd 20 0L IS IvIdnL-OvIviL-801s

Lo £B0L 0N 800

SHIANNYId = SHOAIAHNS =« SHIINIDNI NAID

WO OONYED MMM

95Pr-88.(916) INAISOY
ZZE0-998 (SZ6) NOWVH NVS

Bbqgo

40T 139HS

187SHT-410T ANY 08ZSHT-107 ¥dd - GINIVTIOLING 49 OL INFWISYE SSAD0V 40 NOILYOd

NOLLdIISHA TVDHT ANVANODDV OL LV1d

VINJOAITVD 'VAIWVTY

ST0T ‘61 AVETd

INIOd VATWYTV

00¢ | 3BLLRFON | 1

L1198 | MSFEE00S | €1 G665 | 3.2v.2158S | 91

JGBL | L 20ZEFL | ,00G1 | 01D JGZE | E0FE9F | L000F | GO SE¥F | 320 2L58S | 21 LOBBE | 349 ELGBS | 61
L4900 | BGEGF | 00G0L | 6D b26S | SELLBL | 000F | #0 06718 | 3 pr BLEYS | 1N BOEE | 3.27LLGBS | 1
LLOBEC | LBSZGF | OO'BZEC | 82 £8'Lvl | 9%6L.BT | 0S'GBE | €0 0961 | 3,2¢.2L58S | 01 0S%9 | J.8LLRFON | €7
LVLk | 00,0006 | 000 | £D S0L0L | L¥LOELS | 00001 | 20 U677 | MBLLRYOS | B L¥L | JBLLEFON | 21
L8 | BSPRER | 0002 | 92 8961 | LOSELE | 0008 | 1D L0509 | 3.2vZLGBS | 81 AL09 | MSCLELEN | N
HLONTT Y1130 SNIQYY | ON HLONIT | WIT3Q | SNIgvd | ON HLIONTT | ONiMY3E ON HLONIT INIYv3g ON

J1gvL 3A4n0 378Y1 3AdND J18vL 3NN 378¥1 3NN

Page 114 of 368



DRAFT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the
truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF )
On , 2025 before me, , a notary public,
personally appeared who proved to me

on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or the
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

SEAL:

Page 115 of 368



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA RESOLUTION NO.

Authorizing the A) Approval of a Settlement Agreement among the City of Alameda
(the “City”), the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the “Authority”), and the
Alameda Unified School District (“AUSD”) Relating to Certain Real and Personal Property
Exchanges at Alameda Point and the Encinal Terminals Area; Funding of Encinal High
School Swimming Pool Renovation; and Funding for Development of Affordable Housing
by the Housing Authority;  (B) Authorizing the Executive Director to accept conveyance of
20 acres of property at Alameda Point from the City; (C) Authorizing the Executive Director
to enter into an agreement to exchange, and to exchange with AUSD, the Alameda Point
property conveyed by the City and $1.2 million dollars for the former Island High School
site located at 2437 Eagle Avenue and AUSD’s agreement to assign its rights and release
all claims to the approximately $4.6 million dollars in Housing Asset Funds collected prior
‘to June 30, 2012; and (D) Authorizing the Executive Director to Negotiate and Execute
‘Additional Documents as Necessary to Implement the Settlement Agreement and the
actions contemplated by the resolution

'WHEREAS, fhe Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the “Authority”), the City
of Alameda (the “City”) and the Alameda Unified School District (‘AUSD”) wish to settle
various matters which will result in the transfer of properties and funds between them;

WHEREAS, the parties have negotiated a Settlement Agreement Authorlzmg
Certain Real and Personal Property Exchanges, attached to this resolution.as Exhibit A
(the “Settlement Agreement”) which provides, among other things, for: (A) the conveyance
by the City to the Authority of 20 acres of property at Alameda Point, more particularly
described in the attached Exhibit B (the “Alameda Point Property”), (B) the conveyance of
the Alameda Point Property and $1.2 million dollars from the Authority to AUSD in
exchange for the site of the former Island High School, located at 2437 Eagle Avenue, and
AUSD’s agreement to assign its rights to the Authonty and release all claims to the
approximately $4.6 million dollars in Housing Assets Funds, as defined in the Settlement
Agreement (the “Housing Asset Fund”); :

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Authority agrees to accept
conveyance of the Alameda Point Property and to enter into an Exchange and Purchase
and Sale Agreement with AUSD pursuant to which it will agree to convey the Alameda
Point Property and $1.2 million dollars to AUSD in exchange for the former Island High
School site located at 2437 Eagle Avenue and AUSD’s execution of an Assignment and
Release Agreement, assigning its rights to the Housing Asset Funds to the Authority and
releasing any clalms to the Housing Asset Funds;

WHEREAS, approval of the Settlement Agreement and the actions contemplated
- therein and by this resolution is not a project and is therefore, exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Guideline Section 15060(c)(3). The Agreement
does not commit the Authority to a particular course of action with reasonably foreseeable
adverse impacts on the environment. Any potential development project stemming out of
the Settlement Agreement and the actions contemplated therein and by this resolution,
such as an affordable housing project at 2437 Eagle Avenue is speculative at this point.
However, any future project with the possibility of having any environmental impacts will
undergo appropriate environmental review prior to any approvals.

Page 116 of 368



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves the
Settlement Agreement and authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Settlement
Agreement on behalf of the Authority;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes the -Executive
Director to accept conveyance of the Alameda Point Property from the City;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board authorizes the Executive Director to
negotiate, execute and carry-out an agreement with AUSD to exchange the Alameda Point
Property and $1.2 million dollars for the former Island High School Site and AUSD’s
execution of an Assignment and Release Agreement, assigning its rights to the Housing
Asset Funds to the Authority and releasing any claims to the Housing Asset Funds;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is authorized to execute
any and all documents -and take any and all actions necessary to accomplish the actions
contemplated by this resolution.

Exhibit A: Settlement Agreement
Exhibit B: Legal Description of the Alameda Point Property

Page 117 of 368



® ¢

SECRETARY'’S CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of
the City of Alameda in a Meeting of the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners on the
13th day of March, 2014, by the following vote to wit:

AYES: 5
NOES: 0
ABSENT: 1

ABSTENTIONS: 0

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal
of said Commission this 13th day of March, 2014.

Page 118 of 368





